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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Apex Ace Holding Limited (the
“Company” and the "Board”, respectively), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Group” or "Apex Ace Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018
(the “Year”").

The successful listing of our issued shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the Year
marked an important milestone for the Group. The listing granted the
Group access to an international platform for fund raising, broadening our
shareholder base as well as promoting our business development. With
our more pronounced recognition, the Group achieved a significant
improvement in business growth and experienced more flexibility in
strategic deployment in different markets.

Thanks to our extensive product mix and our expanded clientele, the
Group achieved an outstanding performance in 2018. During the Year,
revenue leaped by 30.9% year-on-year to HKS$3,717.6 million (2017:
HK$2,840.3 million), while gross profit surged by 26.0% year-on-year to
HKS$178.1 million (2017: HK$141.4 million). Profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the Year reduced by 35.4% year-on-year to HK$22.6
million (2017: HK$35.0 million). Basic earnings per share was 2.38 HK cents
(2017: 4.66 HK cents). The Board has resolved to recommend the payment
of a final dividend of 0.6 HK cent per share for the Year (2017: nil).

The emerging technologies in the next five years will bring technical
innovation in various aspects that favour the digital storage and electronic
component markets, including autonomous & electric vehicles and smart
devices such as TVs, set-top boxes, mobile phones, home appliances and
Internet of Things (loT), etc. The exponential pervasiveness of tech-based
products in our daily lives advocates a booming trend of related industries.
Coupled with the positive impact brought forth by the 5G technology,
hence the demand for digital storage products and electronic components
are expected to demonstrate respectable growth in the future.

Nevertheless, the slowdown of the global economy, the trade tensions
between the United States of America ("US") and the PRC and the
international conflicts on 5G infrastructure rollout have poised negative
influences on the supply chain like our Group. Hence, we remain cautious
about the outlook of our targeted markets and will adopt a prudent
approach to carefully examine the market trend and deploy consistent and
conservative strategies to prepare for the possible worst to come. The
Group is committed to sustaining its business growth by expanding its
business scale from upstream suppliers and product mix to downstream
market and sales volume; and we shall strive to achieve another impressive
performance in 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREM|E

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude toour ~ RARAERXREFTSRRGBINE BT - 2BEBH
shareholders, staff, business partners and other professional parties for M EMEZE A TR HETHEH - BFIEH
their unremitting efforts and support. We are committed to the long-term  #EREERE R ARRZEL KD -
development so as to bring sustainable returns to our shareholders.

Lee Bing Kwong FE
Chairman E=RK
22 March 2019 —T-AF=ZA-+=-H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN W&

BUSINESS REVIEW

The issued shares of the Company were initially listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 16 March 2018 (the “Listing Date"),
which marks a key milestone for the Group.

Apex Ace is a distributor of semiconductor and other electronic
components with its core focus on identifying, sourcing, selling and
distributing quality electronic components produced by branded
upstream manufacturers. The Group offers a wide-range of products
including digital storage products that comprise memory and data & cloud
products, and general electronic components, along with the provision of
our complimentary technical supports. Our customers are primarily market
players in the Technology, Media and Telecom (“TMT") sector in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group engaged in its three principal business
divisions, namely, distribution of (i) Memory products; (i) Data & Cloud
products and (iii) General components.

The US-China trade tension, coupled with the global economic downturn
in the second half of 2018, have adversely affected the overall market of
the TMT sectors. However, due to the strong position of the Group's core
market being in the PRC, we were able to grasp the opportunities arising
from the booming demands in the PRC region. Meanwhile, the Group was
able to promptly respond to market challenges brought forth by the trade
tension. The proactive exploration of new products, new suppliers and
new customers outside of the affected regions allowed the Group to
sustain growth in the Year.

Memory products

During the Year, the Group offered memory products including DRAM and
flash memory which are widely applied to multimedia and mobile devices
such as set-top boxes, smart TVs, wearable devices and mobile phones, etc.
Market demand for such devices recorded substantial growth which led to
an increasing demand for our memory products. Revenue generated from
this segment surged by 30.3% year-on-year to HK$2,344.0 million from
HKS$1,799.1 million in prior year (the "Year 2017"), accounting for
approximately 63.1% of the Group'’s total revenue. Gross profit of the
segment decreased by 3.6% year-on-year to HK$69.6 million from HK$72.2
million when compared with the same period in Year 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W&

Data & Cloud Products

The Group's Data & Cloud products include RAID controller cards,
controller ICs and networking processors, which are mainly used in
enterprise-level storage and server systems. Thanks to our strong
relationships with some of the global top five ranking data & cloud solution
integrators, the Group received an exponential increase of purchase orders.
Revenue of this segment surged by 42.7% year-on-year to HK$935.1 million
from HK$655.1 million when compared to Year 2017, which accounted for
25.1% of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit of the segment increased
by 31.3% to HK$54.7 million from HK$41.6 million in Year 2017.

General components

General components include switches, connectors, passive components,
main chips, sensors, power semiconductors and analog-to-digital
converters, which are mainly designed and used in the mobile and
multimedia devices. During the Year, revenue generated from this
segment leaped by approximately 13.6% year-on-year to HK$438.5 million
from HK$386.1 million in Year 2017, accounting for approximately 11.8% of
the Group's total revenue. This was mainly driven by an increasing number
of new customers and a growth in sales of ceramic inductor, capacitor and
main chip for the assembling of smart TVs and set-top boxes and artificial
intelligence devices, etc. Gross profit of this segment surged year-on-year
by 95.7% to HK$53.7 million from HK$27.5 million in Year 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The electronic components supplied by the Group are primarily
categorised into three major segments, namely (i) Memory products, (ii)
Data & Cloud products and (iii) General Components, which contributed
63.1%, 25.1%, 11.8% of the Group's total revenue respectively.

The sales revenue of the Group for the Year increased to HK$3,717.6 million
(2017: HK$2,840.3 million), representing an increase of 30.9%, as compared
with that of last year. The increase in revenue was driven by the growth in
sales of all three major segments of our products.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$178.1 million (2017: HKS$141.4
million), representing a rise of 26.0%, compared with that of last year. The
increasing trend in gross profit during the Year was generally in line with
the upward trend of revenue despite a minor drop in gross profit margin.
The gross profit margin for the Year has dropped slightly to 4.8% (2017:
5.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN W&

Other income and increase in fair value of an investment
property

During the Year, the Group recognised a gain arising from changes in the
fair values of an investment property of HK$2.4 million (2017: HKS$2.2
million). The Group's other income remained immaterial to Group during
the Year.

Distribution and selling expenses

The selling and distribution costs mainly include marketing and sales staff
salaries, commission expense, transportation, freight charges, declaration
and sample expenses. The distribution and selling expenses increased by
approximately HK$31.0 million in the Year, mainly as a result of (i) the
Group adhered additional marketing effort to boost the sales performance
during the Year, including an increase of commission and agency fees
amounted approximately HK$25.6 million over last year; (ii) the increase in
the salaries and benefits for sales and marketing staff of approximately
HK$3.8 million, which was mainly due to certain discretionary bonuses in
rewarding the outstanding sales performance and successful listing of
Group; and (jii) the increase in freight charges, transportation expenses and
sample expenses in response to revenue growth.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of listing expenses, salaries and
benefits (including directors” emoluments), insurance, operating lease and
other premise fee, exchange differences, bank charges and depreciation
expenses.

The administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$16.0 million
in the Year mainly as a result of (i) the increase in the salaries and staff
benefits in aggregate by approximately HK$10.4 million as the Group had
expanded operation in response to the significant growth of its business;
(ii) the increase in bank charges and insurance in aggregate by
approximately HK$4.3 million mainly due to increase of other bank loan;
and (iii) an increase in other expense by HKS$1.3 million, mainly due to
increase in rental expense and travelling expenses.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs represented mainly interest expenses on its bank
borrowings during the Year. Such bank borrowings were obtained by the
Group for general working capital needs. The Group had finance costs of
approximately HK$18.3 million (2017: HK$11.4 million). The increased
finance costs was a result of the increased interest rate and the overall
increasing use of factoring loans in response to the increased sales in the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W&

Net profit for the Year

Net profit for the Year amounted to HK$33.3 million (2017: HK$45.4
million), representing a drop of 26.6%, comparing with that of Year 2017.

The decrease of net profit was principally attributable to the net effect of (a)
drop in gross profit margin as a result of the slowdown of the global
economy impact, trade tensions between the US and the PRC and the
weaker market demand in the PRC; (b) significant increase in distribution
and selling expenses; (c) increase in administrative expenses; and (d)
increase in finance costs.

Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company

The net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year was
HK$22.6 million, representing a decrease of 35.4% as compared with that
of Year 2017 mainly due to significant increase in administrative,
distribution and selling expenses despite a growth in sales revenue.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group met its liquidity requirements principally
through a combination of internal resources and bank borrowings. The
Group's cash resources as at 31 December 2018 were approximately
HK$182.6 million (2017: HK$66.3 million). They were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbiand US dollar.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total outstanding bank borrowings
amounted to HK$391.3 million (31 December 2017: HK$479.5 million)
which comprised mainly bank factoring loans, import loans, trust receipts
loans, instalment loans and revolving loans. The Group's bank borrowings
which were unrestricted and carried at amortised cost with a clause of
repayment on demand are classified as current liability. The bank
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and US dollar and
were subject to interest at commercial lending rates. The gearing ratio
decreased from 244.2% in 2017 to 118.7% in 2018. Gearing ratio is
calculated based on total loans and borrowings (including amounts due to
a director and a related party and bank borrowings) divided by total equity
at the respective reporting date.

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group carried out its business transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi, and US dollar. As the Hong Kong dollar remain pegged to the
US dollar, there was no material exchange risk in this respect. As the
portion of Renminbi revenue is insignificant, there was no material
exchange risk in this respect. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors the
Group's exposure to interest rate risk on an ongoing basis and will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise. Credit risk was hedged
mainly through credit policy and factored to external financial institutions.

REFEAA]

KEZMFNABIAEBTL(ZZT—+HF 1454
HEBT) BT —tFETHK266% °

MR EZEBR () BIREBERENTE
FEREHERIFETSARRIBAENOET
RTNEZFZEME: DD HREERX K
PEIEAN : (OFTERFISIBIN : R (d) 1 7% B P 45
hm e

RRBER AELFR

RAFE  RRAHEARGEEN 2688
BT BT+ FETH3 4% TERE
EHEREHEEMEREITE - DHEMEEHR
S INRIEIE D o

RBESRBKEER

RAFE  AEEZEBBEAFEARNTER
MIRTERERATERDES TR - AELER
TZE-N\FE+-_A=Z+—HNREEROA
1826 BEBIL(ZE—+LF 663 EEBIT) °
HFBLUETL - ARERETLAE -

RZB—-NFE+-A=+—08 AEEHKE
BIRTEENARIEEATL(ZE—+1F
+_A=F+—H 4795888 T) TEBHE
RITRIBER - EOER - E:tUlBER o
HERRERER - REERITEE W HER G
MR B S AATIBR - RSB ANEE IR - 8
BRBaE ZERTEBEEUEBTEETE
B WERBEERFEISFE - EXEE
LR\ =T — ) 2442% THRE T —)\F
R11187% ° BEARNBEL R TYIZN SRS BEK
ERNEERE(BRENESREEINR
HARBITEE) BRIARERTE -

REBHMBEMRIAETESY - AEBETE
B ARBRETETEREBRS - BN
TUNAABRSETTND - BLUL T 5 WM EATE K
@ ANARBKREOLHIRE - et st
BB A SRR - AEE B AT SR R Y
IR - AT - EEESREEEAEENT
KR YR T EREBEPANERR - 5
ERREEZ2FBEERRRMAINGBEE
EITREBH XS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #%#% 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN W&

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had executed the following
guarantees in respect of banking facilities granted to related companies in
which Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (“Mr. Lee") has beneficial interests.

— guarantee limited to HK$86 million plus default interest and other
costs and expenses among the Group and related companies; and

— guarantee with unlimited amount between the Group and a related
company

Such banking facilities utilised by the related companies as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$30.1 million. These guarantees have been released
during the Year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the banking facilities of the Group were secured
by trade receivables of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$367.3 million (2017: HK$466.8 million), the legal charge
over the investment property of the Group of HK$54.0 million (2017:
HKS$51.6 million), leasehold land and buildings of approximately HK$40.5
million (2017: HK$41.9 million) of the Group, insurance policy executed by
a related company, personal guarantee executed by Mr. Pai Yin Lin (a
director and non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries of the Group) and
corporate guarantees executed by the Group. (2017: bank deposit of the
Group of approximately HK$2.0 million, property of Mr. Lee, properties of a
son of Mr. Lee, properties, securities and deposits owned by companies
controlled by Mr. Lee, insurance policy executed by a related company,
personal guarantees executed by Mr. Lee, Ms. Lo (wife of Mr. Lee), Mr. Pai Yi
Lin and Mr. Lee Chak Hol (son of Mr. Lee) and corporate guarantee
executed by related companies).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 104 staff (31 December
2017:102) inclusive of all its staff in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's
remuneration policy is built on the principle of equitability with incentive-
based, motivating, performance oriented and market-competitive
remuneration packages for its employees. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary, other staff benefits
include provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage and
performance-based bonuses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING LtHRERIERERR

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering (as &I B M4 MATERBER % - AA A
defined below) in the amount of approximately HK$116.9 million after ~ 2EZEE (F&F T X) WK ATS R IBFEELD
deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses will be used 1169 B BB TN BB AT~ N\F - A
in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the section headed Z—+\BHAARIHABRER(THEER]) (£
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company Rt EI R FTSRERE ] —fFTE —B0 A
dated 28 February 2018 (the “Prospectus”). The net proceeds received were I {FFH - AEB A L AEEEZ —T— \F
applied by the Group from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018 as  +=A=+—H - EA B WEK 15 R F 5
follows: o

Application of

net proceeds
as stated
inthe  Actual use of Unused Unused
Prospectus netproceeds netproceeds net proceeds
ERARER ERER AR AEA
FritpEr FGRE PR FrERE
FEREEE B B B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
TR THET TEx
Repayment of bank loans EBEERETER 39,045 39,045 - -
Establishing a new product and HRED R BN
development department 2,810 700 2,110 75
Strengthening sales and marketing and FERIEEA B RIEMSE
technical support team by recruiting MmEEE - BER
staff and providing trainings TS R E N 10,750 3,000 7,750 72
Enhancing warehouse and office in HK WETENRERMER 4600 724 3876 84
Installing ERP and supporting software ZEMEBREIAZERIFHEG 7,090 3316 3774 53
Establishing new offices in the PRC ERBERTHRER 5027 - 5027 100
Acquisition and establishment of BERBUNIARER
Shenzhen head office 35,888 - 35,888 100
Working capital for general corporate E-RRARENEERS
purpose 11,690 11,690 - -

116,900 58475 58425 50




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN W&

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 28
November 2018, AVT International Limited("AVT"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a non-legally binding
Memorandum of Understanding with the holder of certain distributorship
rights (the “JV Partner”) and the guarantors, for formation of a joint venture
(the ")V Company”) with the JV Partner. In consideration of the payment of
an amount not more than US$5.0 million by AVT to the JV Partner, AVT and
the JV Partner shall establish the JV Company and the JV Partner shall
transfer the distributorship rights to the JV Company, which will be owned
as to 60% by AVT (or such other nominee as directed by AVT) and 40% by
the JV Partner.

The above transaction has been under due diligence review up to the date
of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Board is not aware of any significant event affecting the Group and
requiring disclosure that has been taken place subsequent to 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report.

PROSPECTS

With China pioneering the 5G network applications, coupled with the
popularity of fibre-to-home internet, the demand for digital storage
(memory and data & cloud) and general electronic component products is
expected to grow in the coming years. The Group shall cautiously increase
its competitiveness broadening the product mix and expanding market
share. The Group shall devote continuous effort on securing
distributorships of existing and newly emerging digital storage products,
as well as enhancing its technical support to strengthen the relationships
with its customers and suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR D

To uphold and expand its market share, the Group shall continue to adhere
to its "high volume — low margin” business strategy. By maintaining its
gross profit margin at a reasonable level and aiming for a balance between
sales volume and profit, the Group shall strive to ensure sustainability in
business expansion. The Group also plans to expand its newly developed
market research team, which has been actively analysing and researching
on market intelligence and conditions, in order to enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in securing distributorship of a more
comprehensive product mix from existing and new suppliers. In addition,
the Group shall focus more on the sales of electronic components applied
in automotive, medical electronic equipment and industrial applications,
to seize more business opportunities in promising markets to generate
additional contributions to its operating results in the future.

Facing the threats of continued trade tensions and global economic
headwinds, the Group will strive to become an agile and adaptive leader,
capable on making timely decisions to adapt to any possible changes of
government regulations. We will also continue to devote efforts to
embrace new technologies and enhance our staff trainings, so as to ensure
the sustainable growth of the Group in challenging times.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (“Mr. Lee”), aged 64, the founder of the Group and
the controlling shareholder, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company (the "Director”) on 4 July 2012 and is also the chief executive
officer of our Group and the Chairman as well as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”). Mr. Lee is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company (the “Subsidiaries”). Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor's degree of
applied science from the University of Toronto, Canada in 1980. Mr. Lee
established Nicegoal Investments Limited (“Nicegoal Investments”) in 1987
with business mainly in manufacturing of personal computer motherboard
and trading of components and accessories for personal computer and
AVT in 1992 which started its business of trading of electronic components
in 2005. Prior to the establishment of Nicegoal Investments, Mr. Lee acted
as sales engineer and marketing engineer in the sales and marketing
department of Motorola Semiconductors (HK) Limited during the period
from 1981 and 1985. Mr. Lee has been active in the semi-conductor field
for more than 30 years. Mr. Lee is the sole director of Best Sheen Limited, a
company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO"). Mr. Lee is the husband
of Ms. Lo Yuen Lai and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lo Yuen Kin, both being
executive Directors and the father of Mr. Lee Chak Hol, being the deputy
chief executive officer of the Group.

Mr. Lo Yuen Kin (“Mr. Lo”), aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director on 21 February 2014. Mr. Lo is also a director of certain
Subsidiaries. Mr. Lo joined our Group in May 2012 as finance director. Mr.
Lo obtained a bachelor's degree of engineering from The Cooper Union
for the Advancement of Science and Art, New York, US in 1988 and a
master’s degree of science (aeronautics and astronautics) from Stanford
University, California, US in 1990. In 1987, Mr. Lo was elected by The Cooper
Union — Cooper Union Pi Phi Chapter and declared a certified member of
Pi Tau Sigma Fraternity. Further, Mr. Lo has been a responsible officer of
Positano Wealth Management Limited for the supervision of Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO since September 2017 and was a responsible officer of
China Shenghai Investment Management Limited responsible for the
supervision of Type 1 (dealing in securities) (for the period from September
2009 to August 2013), Type 4 (advising on securities) (for the period from
April 2009 to August 2013) and Type 9 (asset management) (for the period
from April 2009 to August 2013). During the period from December 2002
to February 2007, Mr. Lo worked for SinoPac Capital Limited as director of
equity trading. During the period from 1990 to 2016, Mr. Lo worked with
various financial institutions and accounting firm, including Price
Waterhouse, Credit Lyonnais (Asia) Limited, Mees Pierson Securities (Asia)
Limited, Morgan Grenfell Asia Securities (HK) Limited, BZW Asia Limited,
China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, ING Baring
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, G.K. Goh Securities (H.K) Limited and YGD
Asset Management (HK) Limited. Mr. Lo is the younger brother of Ms. Lo
Yuen Lai and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lee, both being executive Directors
and the uncle of Mr. Lee Chak Hol, being the deputy chief executive officer
of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEERE

Ms. Lo Yuen Lai (“Ms. Lo"), aged 63, was appointed as an executive
Director on 22 March 2019. Ms. Lo is also a director of certain Subsidiaries.
Ms. Lo worked as the assistant to the chief executive officer of AVT, an
indirect wholly-owned Subsidiary, from August 2015 to February 2018 and
has been the sales director and a director of AVT since February 2018 and
March 2019 respectively. Ms. Lo has also been a director of I-Sky Electronic
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned Subsidiary, since March 2004. She
served as a non-executive director from April 2010 to July 2010 and as an
executive director and the deputy chairman of the board from July 2010 to
June 2013 of CIL Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 479). Ms. Lo is the wife of
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong, being a controlling shareholder (as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”)) of the Company, the Chairman, the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive Director, the elder sister of Mr. Lo Yuen Kin,
being an executive Director, and the mother of Mr. Lee Chak Hol, being the
deputy chief executive officer of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 February 2018. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
audit committee of the Board (the “"Audit Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor's degree of applied science
from the University of Toronto, Canada in 1975. Mr. Cheung was elected as
a member of the Association of Professional Engineers of the Province of
Ontario, Canada and the Institution of Electronic and Radio Engineers in
1977 and 1983 respectively. Mr. Cheung retired in 2008. Prior to Mr.
Cheung's retirement, he acted as vice president (Greater China Operation)
of Renesas Technology (Hong Kong) Limited during the period from 2003
to 2008 responsible for, amongst others, strategic planning and operation
support for the Greater China Market. During the period from 1983 to 2003,
Mr. Cheung worked with various electronic components companies,
including Motorola Semiconductors (HK) Limited and Hitachi Electronic
Components (Asia) Limited; and was responsible for the sales and
marketing of electronic components.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Yim Kwok Man (“Mr. Yim”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 February 2018. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Yim has over 20 years' experience in the areas of corporate
finance, debt and equity capital markets, asset management and merger
and acquisition advisory. He has been a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom ("UK") since
2003 and an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
(now known as The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
since 2002. Mr. Yim is currently an independent non-executive director of
Tsui Wah Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1314), with effect from November 2012.
Mr. Yim is also a non-executive director of Star Properties Group (Cayman
Islands) Ltd., the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1560), with effect from March 2016. Mr. Yim was a
responsible officer of Odysseus Capital Asia Limited (formerly known as
GALAXY CAPITAL LIMITED), a corporation licensed under the SFO, for Type
6 regulated activity (advising on corporate finance) till July 2014. Mr. Yim
graduated with a bachelor's degree of engineering in civil engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1991 and obtained a master in business administration
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Yim served as a non-executive director of Eternite
International Company Limited (now renamed as Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited), the shares of which are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8351), for the period from December 2010
to August 2011. From Mr. Yim’'s graduation to present, he worked with
various financial institutions and investment banks, including Rabobank
International Hong Kong Branch, DBS Asia Capital Limited and CITIC Capital
Markets Holdings Limited.

Dr. Chow Terence (“Dr. Chow”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 February 2018. He is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Dr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1987. Dr. Chow has worked
in various public and academic units, including medicine, surgery,
orthopaedics & traumatology, oncology, anaesthesia and intensive care
before starting his private general practice in 1991. Dr. Chow founded
Bright Growth Doctors & Associates in 1993, which was the first private
medical group in Hong Kong to have its own CT (computerized
tomography) machine. In 2000, Dr. Chow founded TY Healthcare
Corporation and has been its Chairman and Medical Director since then.
From 2007 to 2012, Dr. Chow has been appointed by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as a Penal Member of the
Human Organ Transplant Board. He is currently a member of the Hong
Kong Medical Association and the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians.
Dr. Chow is also been an Honorary Clinical Assistant Professor in Family
Medicine at the University of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Chak Hol (“Mr. CH Lee”), aged 27, joined our Group in October
2015 and was appointed as deputy chief executive officer of our Company.
He is also a director of certain Subsidiaries. He is mainly responsible for
assisting the chief executive officer in daily management of the Group for
relevant coordination with internal management and external business
alliances, including but not limited to the operation and management of
the Information Technology and Human Resources Departments of the
Group and the supervision of internal control implementation. Mr. CH Lee
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Toronto in
November 2014. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. CH Lee had worked with
various financial institutions, including the commercial banking
department of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
and was responsible for arrangement of trade and/or guarantee
transactions for corporation, Denz Capital Limited (primarily investing in
private equity) as an intern and the risk control department of UBS,
responsible for internal control. Mr. CH Lee is a son of Mr. Lee and Ms. Lo
and the nephew of Mr. Lo Yuen Kin, all being executive Directors.

Ms. Leung Yuen Ting (“Ms. Leung”), aged 48, joined our Group in May
2012 and was appointed as the financial controller of the Group
responsible for general financial management and daily financial
operations of the Group. Ms. Leung obtained her Bachelor of Business
(Accountancy) from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
University, Australia, in September 2008. Ms. Leung has been a member of
the Hong Kong Association of Accounting Technicians since 1995. Ms.
Leung has over 25 years of experience in the accounting field. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Leung had worked as an in-house accountant for
various companies, including Far East Consortium International Limited,
Card Protection Plan Limited, AET Flexible Space (Hong Kong) Limited and
EQ Corporate Management (HK) Limited.

Mr. Ho Yuen Tung (“Mr. Ho"), aged 39, joined the Group in 2017 and
was appointed as the financial controller of the Group in July 2018. Mr. Ho
is responsible for the Group’s financial planning, internal control and
management, compliance requirements under the Listing Rules. He has
extensive experience in auditing, financial and treasury management,
information technology, credit control as well as banking. He has
accumulated more than 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and financial management in international audit firms and listed company.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration (Accounting) from
Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Apex Ace Holding Limited (the “Company”) is dedicated in maintaining
and ensuring high standards of corporate governance practices and the
corporate governance principles of the Company are adopted in the best
interest of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) as
well as the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). The
Company had adopted the applicable code provisions and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

As the Company's issued ordinary shares (the “Shares”) were initially listed
on the Stock Exchange on 16 March 2018 (the “Listing Date” or the
“Listing”), the CG Code was not applicable to the Company for the period
from 1 January 2018 to 15 March 2018, being the date immediately before
the Listing Date. However, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018 (the "Period”), with the
following exception:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lee Bing Kwong, who has
considerable experience in semiconductor and other electronics
components industry, is the chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”
and the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ"). The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and
the CEO in Mr. Lee Bing Kwong has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning of the Group. The Board will nevertheless review
the structure from time to time and separate the roles of the Chairman and
the CEO to two individuals, if appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code") as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. A specific enquiry has been made by the Company with each of
the Directors and all the Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the requirements set out in the Model Code throughout the Period.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties. The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committee’s various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. The responsibilities of these Board committees include
monitoring the Group’s operational and financial performance and
ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management are in
place.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised of three (3)
executive Directors and three (3) independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The members of the Board during the Period and up to the date
of this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (Chairman and CEQ)

Mr. Lo Yuen Kin

Ms. Lo Yuen Lai (Appointed on 22 March 2019)

INEDs

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui
Mr. Yim Kwok Man
Dr. Chow Terence

The biographical information of the Directors and relationship between
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report. There is
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
among the members of the Board.

Chairman and CEO

The Company has appointed Mr. Lee Bing Kwong as the Chairman and
CEO, who is primarily responsible for overseeing the corporate
development and strategic planning of the Group.

INEDs

In compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three (3)
INEDs, representing at least one-third of the Board, with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received a written
confirmation from each of the INEDs in respect of their independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs are independent
during the Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors take decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board to formulate corporate mission, visions and
policies of the Group and to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues.

All Directors, including INEDs, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

All executive Directors actively involves in managing the affairs of the
Company with a good understanding of the business, and play important
roles in the daily operations, whilst all INEDs participate in the Board
meetings and bring their independent views and judgments on various
issues.

INEDs provide the Group with a wide range of skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through their regular attendance and
active participation at various committee meetings of the Company. They
bring independent opinion and judgment on the strategy and policies to
ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into account.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and the management has an obligation to supply the Directors
with adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to
perform their responsibilities. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily
operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management team. Such management team is accounted for their
performance to the Board.

During the Period, each executive Director frequently met and discussed
with the management team in order to maintain an effective feedback
system and enable the Group to react to changes or problems quickly and
efficiently. The Board shall review its arrangement on delegation of
responsibilities and authority regularly to ensure that such delegations are
appropriate in view of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that
appropriate reporting system is in place.

Each Director is free to seek advice from and has access to the Company’s
senior management team independently.

Board Proceedings

The Board is required to convene four (4) regular meetings in a financial
year with intervals of not more than four (4) months. Notices of not less
than 14 days is required to be given to all Directors and each Director is
invited to include matters in the agenda. The company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) assisted the Chairman in establishing
the meeting agenda. Detailed agenda and related meeting materials were
circulated to all Directors at least three days before the date of the regular
meetings.

Minutes were recorded in sufficient detail and draft minutes have been
circulated to all Board members for comments. Finalised minutes were also
sent to all Directors for their records within reasonable time after the
meetings. All minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and were open
for inspection by Directors.

Immediately prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given the relevant
guideline materials regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors and
duty of disclosure of interest.

During the Period, the Board held four (4) meetings, amongst other
matters, considered and approved the audited combined financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018.
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During the Period, four (4) Board meetings and one (1) annual general
meeting (the "AGM") were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors
are set out below:

Name of Directors

RAHE BT TOOREFESHEL—()

RERBERE ([BRRBFRE]) - EFHFE

HEHIMT

Attendance of
HE
Board
AGM

Meeting(s)
EEZg83 RRBEFKS
Attended/eligible to attend
BHE SEKRHE

EEHE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (Chairman and CFO) FRATE
(FEFITBAAZ)

Mr. Lo Yuen Kin ETER S A&

INEDs BUKHITES

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui sR/NE SR A

Mr. Yim Kwok Man B B S S A

Dr. Chow Terence PEHEEL

4/4 11
4/4 11
4/4 1/1
4/4 11
4/4 11

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development
which is relevant to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Every
newly appointed Director has received a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction package to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the Company's operation and business and the relevant
statues, common laws, the Listing Rules, legal and regulatory requirements
and governance policies. The Company Secretary also provides the
updates on the latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to
time. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company's expense and they have been requested to provide the
Company with their training records.

During the Period, all Directors attended suitable training and/or briefings
by certain professional advisers and/or participated in continuous
professional development courses organized by professional bodies/firms
on corporate governance or updates on laws, rules and regulations relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Based on the training records provided by the Directors, the following
continuing professional development programmes received by each of
the Directors during the Period is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors

REBEFREMNTIIRE  SEFRAHEK
B AT RBEE R ERABBAMT

Type of Training

BEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong FRHIEE AandB
AMB
Mr. Lo Yuen Kin ErBAAE Aand B
AMB
INEDs BYKHITES
Mr. Cheung Siu Kui aR/NE S A AandB
AMB
Mr. Yim Kwok Man FEP e AandB
AMB
Dr. Chow Terence WEEEE AandB
AMB
Notes: Misx -
A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, briefings, BEABTEARFE - G

conferences, forums and workshops

B: reading materials relating to the seminars material, economy, general
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

The Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three (3) years.

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three (3) years and each of the INEDs has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two
(2) years, and is subject to retirement provision pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
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The Articles of Association contains provisions for the appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors as follows:

Appointment of Directors

Article 83(2) provides that subject to the Articles of Association and the
Law, the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board.

Article 83(3) provides that the Directors shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.

Re-election of Directors

Article 83(3) also provides that any Director so appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointment by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the article 84(1), at each annual general meeting one-third
(1/3) of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third (1/3)) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Article 84(2) provides that a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which
he retires and any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other
Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to
retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot.

Removal of Directors

Under article 83(5), the members may, at any general meeting and by an
ordinary resolution, remove a Director at any time before the expiration of
his/her period of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these
articles or in any agreement between the Company and such Director (but
without prejudice to any claim from damage under any such agreement).
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management BEERSREERBHMH
The Directors’' remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set REE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFEESF
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. HINE R AR A SRR FE 10 0

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the — ARIE (P2 E AT AIMISFBESCE BIS I - RE,
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose ZZZE—\F+_A=+—HIFESHREE
particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of EBKE (ZEHKRIN) (EEHFERAFRIES
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for the year ended SREREEREFIE] —R)NEFMER

31 December 2018 by band is set out below: AT -
Number of
Remuneration band (HKS) individual(s)
AE
Nil to 1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 £ 2,000,000 1
Corporate Governance Functions EEERRMEE

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate EFERBBITUA TEXEGRE :
governance duties:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on 1. BIF] RARF AR RIMEREBBR LT
corporate governance and make appropriate recommendations to Mo WRESSREEERS
the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional 2. RF REFREFMSREEEMNEIIK
development of Directors and senior management; SEHEEERE

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on 3. sl RERANARE AR REERT
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; TENBEELER

4. todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance 4. HI&] » R MEFERNEE RESH
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and TRTRIRARFME) &

5. to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure 5. BAIARREFAMBTERREEE
in the Corporate Governance Report. AMENREER -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three (3) Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All the committees are empowered by the Board under the
respective terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, which are posted on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and are
available for inspection by the Shareholders upon request made to the
Company Secretary. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs, namely Mr. Yim Kwok Man,
Mr. Cheung Siu Kui and Dr. Chow Terence. Mr. Yim Kwok Man is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has extensive
commercial experience and the Audit Committee has a suitable expertise
in various businesses, financial and legal sectors and that the composition
and establishment of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly (i) to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and to oversee the audit process
of the Group, (ii) to oversee internal control procedures and corporate
governance of our Group, and (iii) to review risk management and internal
control systems of our Group. It has the responsibilities and powers set
forth in the terms of reference.

The Audit Committee members shall meet at least twice a year to consider
the interim and final results prepared by the Board.

During the Period, the Audit Committee held four (4) meetings to, among
others, review and supervise the financial reporting process and review the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and its audit-
related matters. It had, in conjunction with Graham H. Y. Chan & Co,, the
independent auditor of the Company, reviewed the Group's audited
combined financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the unaudited consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and recommended the same to the Board for their
consideration and approval. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures had been
made. The Audit Committee also carried out and discharged its other
duties as set out in the CG Code.
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The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during the
Period is as follows:

Members

BRNIIRTEEN AR EEREZES S
ELON CUNNE

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

Eligible to Attend
BHE AEK
HENEBRE

Mr. Yim Kwok Man EED ¢
Mr. Cheung Siu Kui RN A
Dr. Chow Terence PEHREE

4/4
4/4
4/4

The Audit Committee met on 22 March 2019 and, among other matters,
review the Group's audited consolidated results for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two (2) INEDs, namely Mr.
Cheung Siu Kui and Mr. Yim Kwok Man and one (1) executive Director,
namely Mr. Lee Bing Kwong. Mr. Cheung Siu Kui is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly (i) to
develop a transparent policy in relation to remuneration; (i) to review the
remuneration policy and the structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of our Group; (i) to assess performance of all Directors and
review performance based remunerations payable to Directors and senior
management of our Group and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; and (iv) to make recommendations on other remuneration-
related arrangement, such as, housing allowance and bonuses payable to
Directors and senior management of our Group.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting for
reviewing and recommending the Board of the remuneration and other
benefits payable by the Company to the Directors and senior
management.
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the Period is as follows:

EFHHNEZE G SRKBRAMEA HF R

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting
Eligible to Attend

BHESE®

HENERRE

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui sR/NE SR A
Mr. Yim Kwok Man BB e
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong FRHIEE

The Remuneration Committee met on 22 March 2019 and considered
certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two (2) INEDs, namely Mr. Cheung
Siu Kui and Dr. Chow Terence and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr.
Lee Bing Kwong (Chairman). Mr. Lee Bing Kwong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; (i) to make
recommendations to our Board relating to the appointment, re-
appointment; (iii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board; and (iv) to assess the independence of our INEDs.

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 15 February 2018 and the Nomination Committee shall monitor
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and review the progress
of its measurable objectives from time to time.

A summary of the Board Diversity Policy, together with the implementation
are disclosed as below.

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to strengthen the performance of
the Board, promote effective decision-making and better corporate
governance and monitoring. To achieve a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company encourages increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing an appropriate
composition of the Board, the Board diversity has been considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture
and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Directors appointment will be based on
applicable merits and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED YBRIEIZERARA A

28

FHEZEERN T NF=-A-+-HET
g TEREENSRERENE THM
MHEEE -

REZES
REZBEEHMQBBUIFNTESHEMN
BloR/NEEERPEBRELEAR—)RBRTT
BEF IFRAERE(ER)  FTRAKLERR
HERERERE -

REZBEENIERAROEDRRTESTEZ
g RERAEK  (VHEERERRESS

REHEBZZ  WERABEEEBALK
REFEGRE  RTEBIIFRTESZ
BN

ExetN T /\F_A+hHHEMNESFS
KREZTEBRR(EZTERBZTIEBE])
FiREEBRARRESENE L TIEHEN
EITIE R AR B A5t 8 B R A ERE
o

FFUHA S TBROEEERAEERR
FXHE -

EEENBZTCBRE BN ER Mg E
ARBEEEKREERZTIEHIE AR
HEZENRE  REFRARNEENEE
ERREE REIABERDEERE AR
ARBEFTEREEBZ T YR /X
ERERBARRAEAIGEERNBRITE
KRB EFSNEZERE  CHEFEXE
ZLERZTHEERE  BREENENER
Fi XMERBEER  FXLR - KA
HERGEDR - MAEESRESERERER
ME  MEBEEHREBEREMAER - A
ERENEZTEKEZITEMERE ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERBE

During the Period, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting for,
among other matters, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of INEDs and making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee meeting
during the Period is as follows:

Members

RAHE - RREZE8SRT-—)WAEH &
TRERMNEFTEZE - RERAX - FHE
BIYFRTEE BN WERREEREH
ZEEEANEFTSRMERES -

REZE SRR ERAERE L E LM
T

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting

Eligible to Attend
BHESE%
HENSZRE

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong FRHIEE
Mr. Cheung Siu Kui sRNE S A
Dr. Chow Terence BEREEA

11
11
11

The Nomination Committee met on 22 March 2019 and recommended
the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting after assessing their contribution and performance based
on the nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”).

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.
The policy is embedded in the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee (the "NCTOR"). Please refer paragraphs 8.1.1 to 8.1.4 and
paragraph 9 of the NCTOR.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 74 of this annual
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditor
of the Company, Graham H. Y. Chan & Co,, in respect of audit services and
other services for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Service

B R E

W E-E-N\F+ A=+ —RIEFEREX
IR R BAC RS BN, FEN AR RIB L B ED
OGBSI EHEMMES o rEsImT

Fee paid/payable
B2 EAER

HK$'000

TAET

Annual audit services FEEZRE 1,236
Other services (mainly as the reporting accountant HiRB (EERH LHEEARAR

of the Company in relation to the Listing) ¥R & 5HAD) 1,867
Total da=t 3,103

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders and through the Audit
Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual
basis.

Procedures have been set up for, inter alia, identifying, analysing,
categorizing, mitigating and monitoring significant risks, and safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring reliability of financial information,
ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and regulations and
protecting the interests of the Shareholders. Such systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and aims to provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
currently takes the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function in light of the size and nature of the Group's
business. The need for an internal audit function will be reviewed from
time to time. However, for the Period, the Audit Committee, through the
engagement of an external independent consultants has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The Board considers that the Group's
risk management and internal control are adequate and effective. The
Board expects that a review of the risk management and internal control
systems will be performed annually.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced immediately when it is the
subject of a decision. The procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and its website;

the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information; and

the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group's affairs, so that
only the executive Directors, Company Secretary and investor
relations officers are authorized to communicate with parties outside
the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”"), who has been
appointed by the Board since 5 August 2018 and had been so nominated
by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) under an
engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting
is Mr. Lee Chak Hol, the deputy chief executive officer of the Company, in
relation to corporate secretarial matters. As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as
the company secretary of a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock
company in 1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of
other reputable companies listed on the Stock Exchange at a substantial
amount of time since then, he was not required to have at least 15 hours
of relevant continuous professional training under the Listing Rules for
each of the five conservation years from 2012. Mr. Kwok have undertaken
15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules during the Period.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 31
December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to
propose any dividend payout and/or determining the amount of any
dividend to be paid, the Board will take into account, amongst other
matters:

(@)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
(b) interests of shareholders of the Company;

(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the other members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
financial covenants to which the Group is subject;
(e)  possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

() any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(@) the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(h)  liquidity position of the Group and any future commitments at the
time of declaration of dividend;

(i) taxation considerations;

() statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(k) general business conditions and strategies;

() general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; and

(m) other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends shall be subject to all applicable

laws and regulations including but not limited to the Companies

Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the memorandum

and articles of association of the Company (the “Memorandum and

Articles”).

The Company will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and

reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/

or modify the Dividend Policy at any time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; any such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after deposit of such requisition; and if within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman Islands
Companies Law for the Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Company Secretary

Units 2-3, 1/F

Sun Cheong Industrial Building
1 Cheung Shun Street
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Chairman and chairman of the Board
committees (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet the
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.apexace.com as a
communication platform with the Shareholders and investors, where the
financial information and other relevant information of the Company are
available for public access.

Constitutional Documents

During the Period, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles. An up to date version of the Memorandum
and Articles is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” and the “Board”,
respectively) is pleased to present the report of the Directors together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sales of electronic components,
and sales and integration of storage systems. The shares of the Company
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 16 March 2018 (the
“Listing Date”).

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. A list of the
Company’s subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation,
principal activities, place of operation and particulars of their issued shares/
registered share capital, is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 75 and 76.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018, together with the reasons thereof, are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
0.6 HK cent per Share payable in cash for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the "Proposed Final Dividend”). Subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM”") to be held on Tuesday, 28 May 2019, the Proposed Final
Dividend will be paid on Friday, 5 July 2019 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register
of Members”) on Thursday, 6 June 2019. The Register of Members will be
closed from Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019, both days
inclusive. On 13 February 2018, dividend of HK$15,975,000 was declared
and paid by Apex Team Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as at date of this report, to the then controlling shareholder.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE
Review of our Business and Performance

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the key factors affecting its results and
financial position are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Information about a review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group's business is set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Particulars of Important Events

Since 31 December 2018, being the end of the financial year under review,
no important event has occurred affecting the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The following section lists out the key risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for
anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own investment
advisors before making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Financial risks

Details on the financial risks on foreign currency, credit on trade
receivables, liquidity and interest rate facing the Group on its operation
can be referred to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
included in this annual report on pages 155 to 163.

Seasonality of products demand

Our Group's business is generally seasonal in nature. It is possible that
seasonality in demand for our customers’ products might affect our
Group's sales in the future. Market conditions faced by our customers may
be volatile and are beyond the control of the Group. Future downturns in
the end markets of our customers may affect the business of our Group.
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Reliance on major customers and suppliers

Our stable relationship with our major customers and suppliers enables
our business to achieve stable revenue and profitability level. On the other
hand, if there are any changes in such relationships, which may lead to
withdrawals, cancellations or terminations of transactions, the Group’s
performance and business growth may be adversely affected.

Evolvement in information technology

Our Group operates in a highly competitive industry which faces rapid
changes in market trends, consumer preferences and constantly evolving
technological advances in hardware models, software features and
functionalities. The ongoing changes in technology require us to
constantly incorporate new features or technology into our sensitivity and
adaptability to market demand and/or services in order to cope with the
evolving environment and customer demands.

Our business operation may be affected by future economic and
political policies of the PRC government

The development of PRC’s economy is based on many factors, including
but not limited to structure of economy, government involvement, control
of foreign exchange, allocation of resources and capital investment.
However, any of such changes to the economic and political strategies and
policies of the PRC government may have an adverse impact on the overall
global economy and affect all the industries in which the Group operates.

Our business operation may be affected by future economic and
political uncertainties in the world

Economic and political uncertainties in the world resulted from major
events such as Brexit, the U.S. presidential election or terrorist attack events
may have short-term and long-term effects on the global economy and
the performance of the global capital markets, which in turn may adversely
impact the performance of the Group.

Performance history and forward looking statements

The performance and the results of the operations of the Group as set out
in this annual report are historical in nature and past performance is not a
guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward
looking statements and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties.
Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed in
such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor the
Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume any obligations or
liabilities in the event that any of the forward-looking statements or
opinions does not materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

MEEBREF RUED

BREIEXP RERANRERES MM
EBEMEBENRAZRBAFNKFE - Z—7
o W EFEELRAEEEEE  BURK
IERZHEMEBE - RIAKE R RE MEFE
RAGEEXTAZE -

ERHE RS
AEBFREENTERFEEH - DGR
REFEHBCRE - BHRE  REBER
T T B TEE S - BB ERES
BT I A BT B ST A0 2 S
TIBERE, FIRHS - AR TR LR
REFER -

BMEBELAEE A RDERFHEER
BURBR &
TELENERENZZEER  BRETRRY
REGE  BIRTPRE - INEER - ERD
LR EBEARKZE » 2R - P BB A BAE SRS I
BERHE I AERE E B el & SR IRIE B B BRI K
THZESZEAKEIEENRBITE -

RPEBEL TS B RBREBERBAT
PR RN

HERE - XRBRARRDESEAE
AT A0 BB AT R A T B R 3 T L AR B
EERBREATSNEREREHRESY
2 BT A EE R BERTRHE -

RIDGCE N AUBE MR AL
REFAENAEERBREERERELE
£ MBERRAIFRKRBMNRE - NFH
AIREFA AR R B R - B R AR &
TR E - BER A TN A] L8 % ATHE (£ IR
AN BRARHFERMBEERHA © WHEMFTE
MERRAf s B R ORBERK B Sl T IERE - AEE K
EF AREREREIREHTAEEMNEESK
EREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #%#% 37



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment. Our Group does not engage in the
manufacturing of products and does not have any production facilities.
The inventory are kept at our Group's storage and warehousing facilities
situated inside the headquarters office unit. Therefore, our Group is not
subject to significant health, safety or environmental risks. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, our Group had not been subject to any fines or
other penalties due to non-compliance with health, safety or
environmental regulations.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Our operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Our operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in China and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in China and Hong Kong in all material respects.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group is constantly aware of the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. We encourage employees to
strengthen their knowledge of the industries in which the Group operate
and attend courses or training sessions to improve their relevant industry
and technical knowledge. The Group also maintains ongoing
communications with its employees, customers and suppliers through
various channels such as regular meetings, calls and emails in order to
allow employees to contribute to the development of the Group, deliver
better customer services to our clients and obtain better services and
cooperation from our suppliers.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018
for charitable and community purposes amounted to HK$1,234,000 (2017:
HK$234,000).
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out on page 79 in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2018, the Company'’s distributable reserves calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$117.4
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of our property, plant and equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with
net proceeds received by the Company from the global offering in the
amount of approximately HK$116.9 million after deducting underwriting
commissions and all related expenses and before the exercise of over-
allotment option. The net proceeds received from the global offering will
be used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. Please refer
to section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report for the utilization of the net proceeds from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2018 (the “Period”).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on the Stock
Exchange nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of such Shares during the Period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (Chairman and CEQO)

Mr. Lo Yuen Kin

Ms. Lo Yuen Lai (appointed on 22 March 2019)

INED:s:

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui
Mr. Yim Kwok Man
Dr. Chow Terence

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” to this annual report. In accordance with the
Articles of Association, Mr. Lee Bing Kwong, Ms. Lo Yuen Lai and Mr.
Cheung Siu Kui shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of our Group has been set up
by the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme as an incentive to the eligible participants.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under note 31 “Related Party Transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules to
which the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director, an entity connected
with the Director or controlling shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries (other than members of the Group) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report.

As of 31 December 2018, none of the Directors is interested in any
businesses apart from our business which competes or is likely to compete
with our business, either directly or indirectly or would otherwise require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the Group and the
respective related parties.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2018 had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into
any contract of significance with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the
services provided by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors confirm that none of the related party transactions set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed. Save as disclosed in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had not
entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this report pursuant to
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES ERAE DR KRR DR R

&
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURE B

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors R-Z—N\F+_-_A=+—H0 EEKLEARQA
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares  ZETTBABRAN QG BB EAE (F& R
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the B & HERE1EHI5 XV EB) KBRS -« FREIRL (5 &
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required: (i) to be notified to ~ {EREEF » ZAIRIE « () FH L EEEHE XV
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part 557 X 8 7 3P &A1& 7N A ) K Bk <2 B A 48 25 8k
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken & (BIEREZE A MBS SN XSGR S
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), (i) pursuant to  #WRIEHR EEANERSIAR) « () BHF KL
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (the BB E 1§55 352 & FC A &f FTts & Re fi ([ & &2
“Register”), or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the  fit]) Mz AR - (i) ZETRME AR

s

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows: AR FTE S OR BT ¢
Long positions He
Percentage
Number of Shares held of issued
R ABE voting
Number of shares
underling of the
Companies Personal Corporate Family Other Shares COITREDIES
Name of Directors concerned Capacity interest  interests  interests  interest held concerned
EERAHE
B#1T
FEHE ARTE
RIGEE @ ROAESH
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong  the Company Interest of a controlled - 750,000,000 - - - 750,000,000 75%
("Mr. Lee") corporation (Note 1)
FRAFEHE /NG RipEE R (FzE1)
> 4:3))
Best Sheen Limited ~ Beneficial owner 1 - - - - 1 100%
("Best Sheen’) ELBEA
(Note 2)
EEERAA([ER])
GEX)
Notes: Msx -

1. These Shares are registered in the name of Best Sheen, a company wholly 1. ZERGUESHNBEED  MEEEHS

owned by Mr. Lee. As Mr. Lee controls more than one-third of the voting HHEDEAEANAT c AR L EZGEE
power of Best Sheen, by virtue of the provisions in Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Lee BBR=HSZ—HWIRERE BEZLEREER
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Best Sheen. BIEXVEIEX » FHRARBENEERE

B R B P A R o

2. Best Sheen is interested in 75% of the issued Shares and, accordingly, is the 2. EBHADRTRM 2 75% S & At A4
holding company of the Company within the meaning of the SFO. NEIZIEZER AT (CEABAERHEEG) -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the
Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
had or were deemed to have any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have
to be notified the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) and/or required to be recorded in the Register or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the Company, as
at 31 December 2018, the person (other than a Director or the chief
executives of the Company) or corporations who had interests or short
position in the Share and underlying Shares which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of substantial
shareholders
FERRE

a2/ HE

Capacity/Nature of interest

510 RENE

BEXFEEEN RZ2FE—N\F+=A
=t+—B RESHAN BEEERAQFER
BITA BRARQR S EMEEE (FxRFE
HFREEEGIEXVER) kD - BERGRE
EERHRAREEABETWERIAR - M
ARBESFRPEIEMEBEXVIBE7 R IA
BAARB LB (REREESLHER
DI BSOS B 1E SR BB i e KoK
B &Sk /BRS 8 B R M SR R AZ X SR B 41
SARRNA MBS

FERRRBROREERGHERR AR

MEERARAESTRABHAN RZZ
—N\F+-A=+—8 RBREEHFLHEEM
FEXVERE 2 3D B RESUEM AR B EE
RIREEHF R EIEOIE B IELABFEE
EMMAT(—RESEARA&ESITERAR
BrON) s A RIS R AARENR 5 A Mk
SOABIAT ¢

Best Sheen Beneficial owner/Personal interest
E== FEamlia A AR

Ms. Lo Yuen Lai ("Ms. Lo")MNote 2
ETELE ((ELL]) e

Interest of spouse/Family interest
fe Bt Rk

Number of Percentage of
Shares held®ete" issued Shares
PR BR 43 HE LT

BB WE BHED L
750,000,000 75%
750,000,000 75%

Notes:
1. These represent the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of Best Sheen is held by Mr. Lee. Accordingly,
Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Best Sheen under
the SFO. Ms. Lo (appointed as an executive Director on 22 March 2019) is the
wife of Mr. Lee and is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which Mr. Lee is interested in under the SFO.

1. BER ATRIRHELTE °

2. EENE2HEBTRARFEERSE - Bt
RIBEFSEPEG  FREFRBEA/NEE
PRl HEEER - EXE(R_T—hF
ZAC T ARZERWITESR) RFRLEN
27 At REFHFLRPEERD - FER
RRFREBERANBD P ES Ea
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Save as those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to a resolution in
writing passed by the shareholders on 15 February 2018 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) as incentives or rewards for eligible participants who contribute
to the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, no share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or
cancelled under the Share Option Scheme. Summary of major terms of the
Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purposes of the scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to our Group. The Directors consider the Share
Option Scheme will enable the Group to reward the employees, the
Directors and other selected participants for their contribution to our
Group.

(ii) The Participants

The following persons of the Company, any member of the Group or
of an entity in which the Group holds an equity interest may be
invited by the Directors to take up options to subscribe for Shares at
the Directors’ absolute discretion:

(@)  employees and directors;

(b)  suppliers and customers;

(c) persons or entities that provides research, development or
other technological support;

(d) holders of any securities;

44 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED H(EBREIERERA A

BrEXmBEREEN RZZE—N\F+ZA
—t—H BENRARARSTHRAEL A
AT EAMA R A AR k8RR D
HEEEIOREMAREFESF MBS EHE
XVEBEE 2 M3 D M A R AR + KN
NARBEESF NP EKRIEBIREFTENE
s -

BRETE

ARABREBERRR —ZE—\F_ATHHAB
F) TR G5 B R AR B A R AT 81 (1 BB AR T
) ERERMAKREELERNAERS2HE

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H  TEBERER
BT BRI L 176 RARARGEE
BT EINEZRFBMELNT

(i) EFEIEW
BRETIEERAREREENSH
EROBRE - ERURERAKERR
FEMNRBNEE -EFAR - BR
BtAEASERELRES EERA
B E 2 BERAEBAENTR

(in 2HE
RRAFE - AEEERKE AR HAEE
FAEBRAEaNERNNA TALAIRE
EREENBRENRBRD (HEE2
RBIERE) -

@ RBREMES:
b)) HEBEEP:

(© REHE  RAEREMRMTED
ATHERE

d) FEAEFNFAA



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

(iii)

(iv)

)

(e)  advisers (professional or otherwise) or consultants to any area
of business or business development; and

() any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing
Date (i.e. 100,000,000 shares).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant other than a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company who accepts
the offer for the grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Any further grant of options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval by the INEDs. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an INED, or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue at the date of grant
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An offer of options may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer of the options. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period nor achieve any
performance targets before the exercise of an option granted to him.

(iii)

(iv)

w)
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(vi) Subscription price for Shares and consideration for the

option

The subscription price for Shares will be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the Shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee on
acceptance of the grant of option.

(vii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 16 March 2018, the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted.

EQUITY-LINK AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to enter into an agreement
that would or might result in the Company issuing shares, was entered
into by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 or
subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Lee, through his interest in Best Sheen, is interested in 75% of the
issued Shares. As such Mr. Lee and Best Sheen are the controlling
shareholders (has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules) of the
Company (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”). The Controlling
Shareholders have confirmed that they had been in compliance with all
the undertakings provided under the deed of non-competition dated 15
February 2018 and signed by Mr. Lee and Best Sheen in favour of the
Company (the "Deed of Non-competition”), since the signing of the Deed
of Non-competition up to the year ended 31 December 2018. Details of
the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section headed “Non-
competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus. There are no matters which
required to be deliberated by the INEDs in relation to the compliance and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and they considered that
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by
the Controlling Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands (place of incorporation of the Company) or under the
Articles of Association which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.
The Board considered that during the period from the Listing Date up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code except for those
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report included in this report. For
details please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 18 to
34 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than the employment contracts of the executive
Directors, concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and the indemnity provision and
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance remained in force as of the date of
this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the five largest customers of the
Group comprised 46.7% by value of our total sales during the year, with
the largest customer accounted for 14.7%.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the five largest suppliers of the
Group comprised 84.6% by value of our total purchases during the year,
with the largest supplier accounted for 35.5%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company) has an interest in any of our five largest customers
and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2018 was the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this annual report, there have
been no matters that have occurred subsequent to the reporting period
which have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group's
operations, results or state of affairs in future years.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by Graham H. Y. Chan & Co, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Graham H. Y. Chan & Co. as the
independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Bing Kwong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Apex Ace Holding Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries,
hereinafter referred to as the “Group” or “We") is pleased to present the
2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to
provide an overview of the Group’s management of significant issues
affecting the operations, including environmental, social and governance
("ESG") issues.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the policies and performance regarding the
environmental and social aspects from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 (the "Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope and Boundaries

The Report focuses on the three principal business divisions, namely,
trading of (i) Memory products; (ii) Data and Cloud products and (iii)
General components. The reporting boundary includes sites of operations'
in Hong Kong and Shenzhen. The Group will continuously upgrade its
internal data collection procedures and gradually expand the scope of the
disclosure.

Reporting Basis

"

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain
provisions of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Reporting Guide") contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and on the basis of the four reporting
principles — materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

The information contained herein is sourced from official documents and
statistics of the Group, as well as the combined control, management and
operations information provided by the subsidiaries in accordance with
the Group's relevant policies. The Report is prepared and published in both
Chinese and English. In the event of contradiction or inconsistency, the
English version shall prevail.

l The sites of operations refer to the warehouse and office in Hong Kong and
the office in Shenzhen. They are operated by the Company’s subsidiaries
Ascent Way International Limited, AVT International Limited and Shenzhen
Lisigao Electronics Company Limited* (FIIEBHT&E F AR A 7))

k! The English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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Confirmation and Approval

The Report has been confirmed and approved by the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board") on 22 March 2019.

Information and Feedbacks

The Group values the opinion of stakeholders. If you have any questions or
suggestions regarding the content of this Report, please contact the Group
through the following channels:

Address Units 2-3, 1/F, Sun Cheong Industrial Building,
1 Cheung Shun Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email enquiry@apexace.com

Tel +852 37250102

Fax +852 2401 2105

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is committed to integrating environmental, social and
governance factors into its operations in order to create sustainable value
for stakeholders and take up the responsibilities as a corporate citizen. The
Group has established an Environmental, Social and Governance Working
Group (the "Working Group”). The Working Group is composed of core
members of the Group and is responsible for facilitating the adoption of
ESG strategies and policies throughout the Group, collecting information
related to ESG and other relevant tasks. The Working Group reports to the
audit committees on the implementation of ESG initiatives and the
performance of the sites of operations regularly.

The Board is responsible for the evaluation and determination of the
Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that the Group has established an
applicable and effective system to manage and internally control ESG-
related risks.

The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Reporting Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholders’ opinion provides a solid foundation for the Group'’s
sustainable development and success. The stakeholder engagement helps
the Group to develop a business strategy that meets the needs and
expectations of stakeholders, enhances the ability to identify risks and
strengthens important relationships. Stakeholders can express their
opinions on environmental, social and governance aspects through various
channels. The relevant stakeholders of the Group and their engagement
platforms are as follows:
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Stakeholders Engagement Platforms
B 28YH
Government and . Annual reports, interim reports, environmental, social and governance reports and
regulatory agencies other public information

B REEEHE - FiR - PHIWRE  RE e RERREAREMBARER
Shareholders and investors . Annual general meetings and other general meetings of shareholders
RERKREE . BERBFREREMBRRAS

Company website

NGIEEVS

Press release and announcements

HER A AE

Annual reports, interim reports, environmental, social and governance reports and
other public information

FI - PHRE  RE  HEREARENLEMARER

Peer Industry . Exhibition and trade fair
EES . REREIRES
Employee . Training
== . 5=
Community services
& AR
Customer . Exhibition and trade fair
BF . RERESRES
Regular visits
Supplier . Supplier selection
HPER . HEm e
Exhibition and trade fair
RELRESRES
Regular visits
Materiality Assessment BEEMFTME

The Group identifies issues for disclosure in the Report through internal — ZK£2 @388 A 30 M SN EPE B M R G s B AR SR &
and external materiality assessment. By considering the dependence and ~ HIIRFERIRE < & & B D EH AR EBAKRE L
influence on the Group of the stakeholders and the resources availability of ~ FZEA KL AREBHNERAI AR ERED #
the Group, the management has identified key stakeholders and BIFEBEFMHEWEEHETASE - RECDHAE
conducted a survey with them. They have expressed their opinions and ~ B&EMNMABEAIFERRMHBEERE R RKIEH
recommendations on the sustainability issues related to the Group's — #7% °

operations.
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Consolidating the results from internal and external materiality assessment, AN BB B EE A N EF MNP B B M4 4
the Group has identified the materiality level for the issues based on the 2 IRERRIFEH EBHEE AR B F D ED
importance of the issues to the business and the importance to BEWRHMFIFENZTEUHRE(RTER) °
stakeholders (refer to the table below).

Materiality Level Issues

EEMEE ]
High Product Responsibility
= EmEE
Employment

&R

Labour Standards
ST

Anti-corruption

R&EF

Health and Safety
fEEET 2

Development and Training
R N IE

Supply Chain Management
e

Community Investment
HERKRE

Use of Resources

BIREH

Emissions

BER

Low The Environment and Resources

iy RENEIR
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Environmental sustainability is a key focus of the Group's corporate social
responsibility. The Group has formulated the Environmental Protection
Policy Statement to demonstrate its determination to protect the
environment.

Emissions

Since the business activities covered by this Report mainly involve office
operations, there was no emission that would have significant
environmental impacts other than greenhouse gases produced indirectly
in the course of electricity consumption. Domestic wastewater produced
by the Group was sent through a local pipe network to a sewage treatment
plant.

The Group is committed to the following:
Minimise emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases;
Adopt internationally recognised standards or equivalent local
standards in assessing and disclosing the emissions of greenhouse
gases in its operations;
Prevent and minimize hazardous and non-hazardous waste; and

Properly discharge hazardous and non-hazardous waste produced in
its operations.

As the Group's business activities mainly involve office operations with no
material manufacturing of products, there are no significant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emissions

To control the greenhouse gas emissions, the Group has adopted policies
on efficient use of energy as described in the section headed “Use of
Resources” below and will continue to assess, record and disclose its
greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental data on a yearly basis.
The performance indicators are as follows:

GHG Emissions?

BERR(MRERE D K
REHAERBHOER AREERMATX
[EIREM ] —EIpTl A BA e A EEIR 2 X
B WREEESFIE THEAEEEAER
B EMRERE - BEFOT

BERBEHERK?

Scope 14 tonnes CO,-equivalent 0 0
FHE— “RLHREE - LAMERT

Scope 2° tonnes CO,-equivalent 474 537
HE_—° —RbHREE - LABERT

Scope 3° tonnes CO,-equivalent N/A 293
FE=" S bR E S - LANEST A3

Total GHG Emissions tonnes CO,-equivalent 47 4 83.0
RERBATNE “REHREE - LAMERT

GHG Emissions Intensity tonnes CO,-equivalent/ft? 0.006 0.005
RERBHRENEE —abixE = (VAMERT),FHR

The main sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group were
purchased energy (Scope 2) and employee business air travel (Scope 3),
which constituted 65% and 35% of the total greenhouse gas emissions
respectively in 2018. The Group did not have Scope 1 emissions from fuel
consumption.

2 The greenhouse gas emissions is estimated with reference to The GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard published by World
Resources Institute and World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
2017 Sustainability Report issued by China Light and Power Co. Ltd. and 2077-
2012 Regional Power Grid Average CO2 Emission Factors in China guideline
published by the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China.

3 The physical boundaries covered in Hong Kong were expanded in 2018.

& Scope 1: The direct emission from the business operations owned or
controlled by the Group

2 Scope 2: The “indirect energy” emissions from the internal purchased
electricity consumption by the Group

& Scope 3: Other indirect emissions that occur outside the Group, including

both upstream and downstream emissions
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Wastes

The wastes generated from sites of operations are generally domestic
wastes, office paper, paper board and toner. We have engaged with
recycling companies to recycle the wastes. The details of the wastes
generated are as follows:

=27
BENMHBELNBMBETERERY HAE
FRAE ~ ARAR D - MR IR A A A B
FEY) o FREEERBEMFBAOT

General Unclassified Wastes
—MRARDEEED

Office Paper

PN

Paper Board

AR

Toner
9

kg 2880
T
kg 115
TR
kg 51.0
TR
kg 3.0
T

To reduce paper consumption, we encourage our employees to:

Reuse envelopes and folders for sending internal documents and
letters; and

Adopt electronic communication and filing.

The Group will continuously monitor the greenhouse gas emissions and
waste production to see if any detailed measures can be formulated in the
future for more effective management of emissions.

Use of Resources

The Group is well aware that reasonable use of resources is essential to
sustainable development. The Group is committed to the following:

Adopt the principles of reduce, reuse and recycle to increase the
consumption efficiency of energy, paper, water, high-quality plastic
stretch film (packaging materials) and other resources in its business
operations;

Nurture the culture of environmental protection within the Group to
increase the environmental awareness of employees;

Formulate achievable and measurable goals with regard to
environmental protection;

Maintain continuous communication with employees with regard to
environmental protection policies; and

Z The data was not available in 2017.
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Regularly review the implementation of the Environmental
Protection Policy Statement to ensure effective execution.

The Group seeks to encourage its employees to adopt efficiency measures
in the use of lighting, computer, water, paper and packaging materials.

Energy Management

The major energy source is electricity. The Group has implemented various
measures to mitigate the consumption regarding the use of lighting, air
conditioner and computer.

Lighting
Switch off unnecessary lighting in public areas (such as reception

area, pantry, lavatory and corridors) during less busy hours (such as
lunch-time and non-business hours);

Divide space into zones with the individual lighting control system
to provide flexibility; and

Paint light colours for the office walls and ceilings to reduce
unnecessary lighting.

Air conditioner:

Switch off unnecessary air-conditioners during less busy hours (such
as lunch-time and non-business hours);

Switch on the air-conditioner only when the meeting room is
occupied. Switch off the air-conditioner upon leaving the meeting
room; and

Replacing old, inefficient systems with energy-efficient air-
conditioning systems when necessary.

Computer:

Adjust the computer setting to activate the standby or hibernation
mode of computers so that the display monitor will switch off
automatically or enter energy saving mode when left idle for a
prescribed period of time;

Adjust the brightness of the display monitor; and

Switch off computers (including the display monitor) after use.

APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED YBRIEIZERARA A

56

EHIEGRIRRER
FERE B RNTT ©

REBANE - A

$‘ilﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁbéltﬁ?é\iﬁwﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B BRY K RRBEME

HREE
REEMNEZERREE ] - AEBEETZIER
MLAUBIEE B AR - =HREIAEFE

Gl
EERZERORE (N FERRIZEE %
E~r M) B e ~ @ s (an 8 ’iF@ FoK
EFREMER) BB EREA

KRS D RRE ERRBEHRRZ
I ABEEHIRAL T - &

EINES E%ﬁﬂl% TERE
T E IR AR

EE - R

R AT RO (TR MIES
R fE)) Bt N Z 2 F

= ERQE@F@MZ‘E@E& = o BERD

SRERERETH

REER U B RARR BRI
Zh -

5 B i 3% T DA RIUR E i RO 1 M SRR
B ERAFERE —BRREERRREK
B EHRARI S E A B AR

AEBETFNZE R

RiREEER(BRERRE) -



2018 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

—E-N\FRSE  HEAREARE

The details of energy consumption are as follows:

Energy Consumption

BERHRERBIT

REREFE
Energy Consumption MWh 91.8 104.0
BEIRERE AT E b
Energy Consumption Intensity MWh/ft? 0.011 0.006
EREENTE FEFEEFAR
The main source for energy consumption was still the purchased electricity R EREHIR @ sEREEN X BACRIIARINE
during the Reporting Period. The electricity consumption was higher &} - E=(EAENA)NBREEL S RHA
during summer time (May to August). It was possibly caused by the  AJRERZEHFE R ERAFTE -

increase in the uses of air conditioners.

Water Resource

Water consumption refers to the water usage in washroom and pantry.
The water supply is provided by the third party and managed by the
property management company. Therefore, there is no issue in sourcing
water. The Group has implemented initiatives to control water
consumption as follows:

Turn off the water tap promptly after use; and

When using dual-flush toilets, choose the amount of water for
flushing according to one’s needs and avoid unnecessary flushing.

Water Resource

KER
FEKEERAEFHEEIKEMNAK - kA E=
FiRMt - WHMETEQATEIE - BFi 0 AR
AW ERIEKAREE - NEBSHITATIES
FEKHIEE

PR BERIREFR /KBERE « I

058 T8Ok R | LRI - IRIBFH 2%
BHKE - @R THBENK -

KEIR
Water Consumption m? 349 381
FEK K
Water Consumption Intensity m?*/employee 342° 3.66
KT E SNHKEE
The water consumption for each employee had increased by 7% in 2018 as  HHEK —Z—+F » —FT— \FEHFREEMFEK
compared with 2017 and it was steady during the Reporting Period. EM7%  WHRE AR ANRFIBE -
g The physical boundaries covered in Hong Kong were expanded in 2018. 2 ZE— ) \FEBRER IS EE AR o

2 The data is restated.
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Others

Maintain or replace malfunctioning equipment; and

Give priority to environmentally friendly products or materials in the
procurement process.

The Group plans to adopt more resource saving measures in the future,
such as holding regular internal environmental awareness seminars for
employees, turning off all electrical equipment when not in use at its
offices and warehouses, and conducting regular inspection for water
leaking faucets and toilets.

Packaging Materials

The main packaging materials include label stickers, stretch film and plastic
pallet. The details of the consumption volume are as follows:

Types of material
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Label Stickers tonnes
EE AL A U7
Stretch Film tonnes
TR IR
Plastic Pallet tonnes
B RIER U7

N/A 0.006
i A
0420 0570
N/A 4.590
T A

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the Group's business, its daily business operations
posed no significant adverse impact on the environment directly. However,
the indirect greenhouse gas emissions would aggravate the phenomenon
of global warming. The Group strives to reduce the indirect impact caused
by greenhouse gas emissions through various measures mentioned in the
sections "Emissions” and "Use of resources’”.

Looking ahead, the Group will continuously assess its environmental risks

so as to formulate appropriate response measures and regularly review
and update its Environmental Protection Policy Statement.

b The data of label stickers and plastic pallet were not available in 2017.

58 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED XEBREIERERA A

BRERARER

AR AEEERHEE - HARXBEEHR
RYBEZNERTHNEE - AW - BERRE
HER P ONE 2R LR R - REBEH B
BB R [ EIRE R | S e R ey N RIFE I
ER R PUER M E R E

REAR  AEEGHETHEBHER - 5L
AT MR I+ T BR R A LI
REERA -

0 RAEZELFRERANEHBROEUR o



2018 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

“E-N\FRE  HERERBH

SOCIAL ASPECTS

The Group abided by all laws and regulations adopted in all sites of
operations and has formulated the Employment and Labour Practices
Policy Statement. The aim of the Employment and Labour Practices Policy
Statement is to provide employees with a workplace that is free of
discrimination and harassment and emphasises diversity, health and safety.

Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

The Group regards talents as a key to corporate success and sustainability.
The Group stipulates in the Employment and Labour Practices Policy
Statement and Staff Handbook that the Group will:

Provide equal opportunities in employment, training and career
development regardless of gender, age, nationality, race, skin colour,
religion, body size, illness, mental or physical disability, family roles,
family composition, sexual orientation, political beliefs or social
status;

Provide employees with internal guidelines in relation to equal
opportunities, discrimination and harassment; and

Create a diverse working environment within the Group.

Remuneration and compensation

The remuneration is determined based on the internal grading structure
and with reference to the employee’s educational or technical
qualifications, experience and degree of responsibility pertinent to the job.
Salary is reviewed and adjusted regularly based on the performance of
employee. Besides, overtime compensation is offered to applicable
employee.

Promotion

Employees are promoted on basis of their performance in the current jobs
and the extent to which they demonstrate the attributes required for the
higher grade. Promotion assessment will be conducted by the Head of
Department or Business Unit and the Head of Human Resources
Department, and finally approved by the authorized Management.

Working hours, rest periods

The Group implements five-day work week for non-shift employees. For
shift employees will work according to shift roster but will be entitled to a
rest day per week. The Group's statutory holidays are entitled to
employees, including public holidays, annual leave, sick leave and
maternity leave.
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Welfare and other benefits

Employees after probation are admitted to the Company’s medical scheme
and are included in the travel and personal accident insurance. Monthly
contributions are made to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong
Kong.

The Group abided by the employment laws and regulations that apply to
its sites of operations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282),
the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608), the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong and the labour law of the
People’s Republic of China. During the Reporting Period, there were no
cases of non-compliance in relation to compensation, dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

The Group has been enhancing the related employment policies and
establishing a grievance mechanism to timely manage and respond to
grievance and suggestions raised by employees recently.

Health and Safety

To build a healthy and safe working environment, the Group has stated its
commitment in the Employment and Labour Practices Policy Statement
that it will:

Formulate occupational health and safety measures to minimize the
risk of employees being injured, infected, or exposed to occupational
hazards in the workplace; and

Prepare for emergencies to ensure that the Group can respond in a
timely and effective manner.

The Group abided by the relevant laws and regulations that apply to its
sites of operations, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong. During the Reporting
Period, there were no cases of non-compliance in relation to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group established announcements and
advertisements related to occupational health and safety in the workplace.
Looking ahead, the Group will refine its occupational health and safety
management system and organise occupational health training to improve
the health awareness of employees.
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Development and Training

The Group values the employees’ development and training and has
stated in the Employment and Labour Practices Policy Statement that it
will:

Invest in the training and career development of employees;

Provide sufficient training opportunities to enhance the knowledge
and skills required for employees to perform their job duties; and

Continuously improve the employment system and create a positive
environment for the career development of employees.

The Group conducted technical product training as well as training on
information technology for all employees. To communicate with its
employees on their career development and performance, management
also held staff performance review with employees on an annual basis.

Recently, the Group has been building a system to assess the performance
of employees annually. The Group will periodically review and update its
development and training measures.

Labour Standards

The Group has formulated the Employment and Labour Practices Policy
Statement and prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour. The
Group undertakes timely communication with employees regarding
overtime work arrangements. For example, if there is any need for regular
overtime work, the Group will make forward planning and discussion with
the relevant employees beforehand. Before hiring, various documents
related to the age of applicants are checked to verify his/her age and
identity to avoid child labour and forced labour.

The Group abided by the relevant laws and regulations that apply to its
sites of operations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57). During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of
non-compliance in relation to child labour and forced labour.

The Group will review the implementation of its Employment and Labour
Practices Policy Statement to ensure effective execution of its practices on
prohibiting child labour and forced labour.
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Operating Practices

The Group abided by laws and regulations that apply to all sites of
operations and has formulated the Supply Chain Management, Product
Responsibility and Anti-corruption Policy Statement in order to manage
environmental and social risks in its daily operations.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that proper management of supply chain is essential
to a socially responsible company and is committed to the following:

Stringently select suppliers and review their performance regularly;

Identify environmental and social risks in the supply chain and
formulate corresponding measures; and

Ensure continuous communication with suppliers and provide them
with timely support.

When selecting and sourcing potential suppliers, the Group will take into
account certain factors including (i) the suppliers’ credentials such as, their
backgrounds, production facilities and goodwill; (ii) the features and quality
of the products manufactured by them; (iii) the current and forecasted
demand of the products in the market; (iv) the price and payment terms
offered to the Group; and (v) their technical capability.

The Group has established a risk assessment procedure to identify
environmental and social risks of suppliers and formulate a supplier code
of practice that covers issues of environmental protection and community
care. The Group will continuously review and improve related procedures.

Product Responsibility

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of electronic components
and is committed to the following:

Ensure the quality of our products to safeguard the health and safety
of our clients;

Protect clients’ privacy when collecting, saving, using and sending
personal information of clients;

Formulate remedial measures and contingency plan when there is
client information leakage in a timely and effective manner;

Adopt adequate measures to maintain and protect the Group
intellectual property rights; and

Ensure continuous communication with employees and clients
regarding product responsibility.
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The Group has developed internal quality monitoring standards to ensure
our product safety. For instance, the goods supplied shall be subject to
Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances (“‘RoHS") compliant.
Besides, the Group has implemented measures related to product return
and customer privacy protection. The details are illustrated in the following
sections. Issue related to advertising or labelling does not have a significant
impact on the Group's operations.

The Group abided by the relevant laws and regulations that apply to its
sites of operations, including but not limited to the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap. 362) of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, there
were no cases of non-compliance in relation to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided.

Quality Control and Management

Upon the arrival of the products to the Group, items are ascertained to be
delivered in accordance with our purchase orders, namely the type and
quantity of the products. Once the delivery is confirmed, the staff will
conduct visual checks against the products to ensure that the quality is up
to standard, followed by the conduct of performance testing on some
storage system products.

Most products are packaged in vacuum sealed bags, in such
circumstances, only visual inspections would be conducted on these
products. Generally, opened or damaged packaging is not accepted by our
customers, it is thus not feasible for our Group to conduct performance
testing on these products prior to delivery. The product packaging must
be intact to guarantee the authenticity of the products and that the
products have never been tampered with.

The Group also has measures in place to protect the products from being
damaged during the testing process. The Group’s quality assurance
technicians are required to wear anti-electrostatic clothing and shoes to
prevent the hardware components from being damaged or destroyed by
electrostatic discharge during the testing.

After the visual inspection, products would be repacked pending delivery
in accordance with the purchase orders issued by our customers.
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Product Return Policy

The availability of warranties is subject to the decision of the upstream
manufacturers. Where the upstream manufacturers provide warranties to
the Group, we would in turn, provide warranties to our customers. The
Group would subsequently return defective products under warranty to
the relevant upstream manufacturers for an exchange according to the
Return Merchandise Authorization'' procedures as agreed with the
upstream manufacturers. The related costs of return are borne by the
relevant upstream manufacturers as per the relevant distribution
agreements. It is believed that the quality of the Group's products would
be maintained and that no substantial costs shall be incurred by the Group
even if we encounter product return circumstances.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to the confidential information of
the customers. To ensure the safety and privacy of client information, the
Group will only collect client data for purposes permissible under the
applicable law. Employees are required to sign Confidentiality, Non-
disclosure and Non-competing Agreement, stipulating that the trade
secrets and other confidential information shall not be revealed to any
person, company or media.

In the future, the Group will continue to pay attention to amendments of
relevant laws and regulations in relation to product responsibility. This will
enable the Group to take follow-up action in due course.

Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment
and prevent any form of corruption, the Group is committed to the
following:

Nurture an anti-corruption atmosphere within the Group to improve
employees’ anti-corruption awareness;

Ensure continuous communication with employees and clients with
regard to anti-corruption policy and execution; and

Adopt measures to prevent behaviours such as bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

J Return Merchandise Authorization, one of the after-sales services that
provides replacement or repair of defective components, given that the
components are within the product’s warranty period.
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Employees are prohibited from accepting or granting gifts for business
partners, such as customers and suppliers. As detailed in the Staff
Handbook, the Group has specified the circumstances that allow our
employees in accepting and granting gifts. Employees must declare and
obtain approval from management for cases that are deemed inevitable.

The Group abided by the relevant laws and regulations that apply to its
sites of operations, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) in Hong Kong and the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China. During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of
non-compliance in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

The Group has formulated a corruption risk assessment mechanism and
will introduce terms related to anti-corruption in the employment contract.
The Group will regularly review and update its anti-corruption policy and
measures.

Community
Community Investment

The Group has formulated the Community Investment Policy Statement to
fulfil its corporate responsibility and contribute to the community where it
operates. The Group is committed to the following:

Promote a responsible corporate culture within the Group;

Encourage and arrange employees to participate in voluntary
services and charity activities; and

Leverage its expertise to contribute to the community where it
operates.

The Group selects and approves volunteering and charity activities
organised by external organisations. The Group encourages employees to
participate in and organise their own volunteering and charity activities
during the Reporting Period, for instance, Flag Day 2018, Tung Wah Charity
Gala, and more. Meanwhile, our senior management — Mr. Lee Chak Hol,
Michael is also one of the directors in the board of director at the Tung
Wah Group of Hospital for 2018/2019. These examples illustrate the
commitment of the Group to the community.

In the future, the Group will continue to understand the needs of the
communities in its sites of operations to determine the focus of
contribution.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

Bt
IS lva)l CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

ﬁﬁ Efﬁ% HONG KONG

TO THE MEMBERS OF APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Apex Ace
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as, the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
1. Revenue recognition;
2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables; and

3. Provision for inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

1.

68

Revenue recognition

Nature of the key audit matter
BEETTSEME

REEEE(E)
1. SRR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENFITNMTEEFERETSR

Revenue principally comprises sales of digital
storage products and general electronic
components. For revenue recognition, once the
products are delivered to the customers and the
customers acknowledge the receipt of the products,
the control of the goods is considered to have been
transferred to the customers and revenue is
recognised at that point.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore
it gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be
recorded in the incorrect period or could be subject
to manipulation.
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

— Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over revenue
recognition;

—  Obtaining confirmations from major customers to ascertain
the amounts of sales to them from the Group for the year;

— Assessing, on a sample basis, whether revenue transactions
recorded during the year had been recognised in the
appropriate period by comparing the transactions selected
with relevant underlying documentation, including
customers’ purchase orders, goods delivery notes and sales
invoices;

—  Scrutinising the delivery notes before and after the year end
on a sample basis to assess whether revenue is recognised
in the correct period;

— Scrutinizing the sales ledger after the year end to identify
significant credit notes issued and sales returns and
inspecting relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate period in accordance with the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards; and

— Inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
raised during the year, enquiring of management about the
reasons for such adjustments and comparing the details of
the adjustments with relevant underlying documentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Nature of the key audit matter

MRETEEME

REEEE(E)
2. BERWIRFIBRER G

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRENSE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the use of
management judgement and estimates in assessing
the impairment of trade receivables under the
expected credit losses model.

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, the management
considers the ageing analysis of trade debts, the
current creditworthiness of the customers, the past
collection history of each debtor, and existing
market conditions. Management also considers
forward-looking information that may impact the
customers’ ability to repay the outstanding balances
in order to estimate the expected credit losses for
the impairment assessment.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was HK$508,953,000. No impairment
was recognised for the year.
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AR TH {8 /& 508,953,000 8 7T © FABHEERRE o

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade
receivables included the following:

Understanding the Group's key internal control in managing
and monitoring its credit risk, debt collection and estimate
of expected credit losses;

Re-computing the accuracy of ageing analysis of trade
receivables and testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis
by, on a sample basis, checking to source documents;

Obtaining confirmations from debtors, on a sample basis, to
verify the accuracy of the debtor balances;

Reviewing the subsequent settlement of trade receivables
and checking the subsequent settlement, on a sample
basis, to the related sales invoices and bank records;

Assessing the reasonableness of the impairment assessment
made by the management by examining the information
used by management to make such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information; and

Assessing the adequacy of the credit risk disclosures in
relation to trade receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

3.

70

Provision for inventories

Nature of the key audit matter

RARETEEME

REEEE ()
3. FERHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEITNMEEFRRETSE

We identified the provision for inventories as a key
audit matter due to use of judgement in
determining the appropriate levels of inventory
provision.

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining the allowance for slow-
moving and obsolete inventories, the management
takes into accounts the ageing, net realisable value
and subsequent sales of inventories.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
inventories was HK$84,834,000 and no write down
of inventories was made for the year.
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Our audit procedures in relation to provision for inventories
included the following:

Understanding the inventory impairment policy of the
Group and management’s assessment in estimating the net
realisable values of the inventories;

Assessing the reasonableness of management’s estimates
of the net realisable value of inventories with reference to
ageing of the inventories, subsequent sales of inventories,
latest selling prices, and estimates for costs to make sales;

Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of the
inventories by, on a sample basis, checking to the source
documents; and

Enquiring the sales team of the Group about the expected
sales of the slow-moving or long-outstanding inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
things, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is CHAN Ho Yin, Graham.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEEkEMAZEINER

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZT—N\F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA& 7T 7R)

2018 2017
—E2-N\§ —ZT—tF
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
B E TERT FET
Revenue g~ 6 3,717,611 2,840,308
Cost of sales SHER A (3,539,551) (2,698,945)
Gross profit ER 178,060 141,363
Other income Emlg A 7 3,944 2,496
Increase in fair value of an investment BEYENFELEM
property 2,400 2,200
Distribution and selling expenses DHEMEERY (46,955) (15,937)
Administrative expenses THHEX (76,776) (60,745)
Finance costs BER A 8 (18,293) (11,368)
Profit before tax BB AR A 9 42,380 58,009
Income tax expense S FAx 11 (9,098) (12,642)
Profit for the year FraRF 33,282 45367
Other comprehensive income Htp 2wk
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BEn BT EZER
profitor loss: ZIEAF :
— Exchange differences arising on —REBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations ZIEHERE 331 147
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWBEEEE

for the year 33,613 45,514




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEmEkEMAZENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=ZT—N\F+-A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
i TR FET
Profit for the year attributable to: T AT BIEFERRA
— Owners of the Company e YNGIE ¥ =N 22,614 34,986
— Non-controlling interests — JEPEAR RS 10,668 10,381
33,282 45,367
Total comprehensive income for the year ITALTEEFEFRZERE
attributable to: MR -
— Owners of the Company — RABHEBA 22,945 35,133
— Non-controlling interests — SERER R AR 10,668 10,381
33,613 45514
Earnings per share attributable to AARBEEAEEERER
owners of the Company 12
— Basic — &R 238HKcents/E{ll 466 HK cents Bl
— Diluted — 88 N/ATE N/AZR i A

The notes on pages 82 to 167 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

At 31 December2018 M-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA& 7T 7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FHT
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 14 50,648 51,263
Investment property wEYE 15 54,000 51,600
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WHEMIZE - BB MR B AR
plant and equipment, and mEEENCNES
intangible asset 18 9,691 -
Total non-current assets FREEEMAE 114,339 102,863
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 84,834 174,631
Trade receivables E 5 EWER 17 508,953 642,336
Other receivables, deposits H UGB e
and prepayments N RRIE 18 66,251 95,308
Income tax recoverable AU Bl A S AR 5,392 -
Bank balances and cash WITHHBREIE 19 182,639 66,302
Total current assets BREEE 848,069 978,577
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables E S EMER 20 205,889 360,857
Other payables, accruals HEMENFIE - BErEA
and deposits received rolize 21 31,314 20,647
Amount due to a Director BR—RESHE 22 - 8,247
Amount due to a related party et —ZREE T I8 23,35(a) - 1,560
Bank borrowings RITEE 24, 35(a) 391,268 479,486
Income tax payable FERT ISR 3,819 10,019
Total current liabilities BREEE 632,290 880,816
Net current assets REEEFE 215,779 97,761
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 330,118 200,624
Non-current liabilities RBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE 25 386 290
NET ASSETS EEFE 329,732 200,334
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MBI

At 31 December2018 R-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B5E THET FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE

Share capital R& A 26 10,000 -
Reserves HE 295,866 184,952

Equity attributable to the owners of AATEEAELERS
the Company 305,866 184,952
Non-controlling interests IR R 23,866 15,382
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 329,732 200,334

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 167 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board on 22 March 2019 and were signed

on its behalf by

Lee Bing Kwong

The notes on pages 82 to
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Forthe year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZT—N\F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA& 7T 7R)
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRRHEE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Exchange  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings  Subtotal interests equity
Mzt BA  ROEE HtEE EXRE REEN M FRRER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FEL FiEx TEL FiEx TEL
(Note)
(M3E)
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=Z-t%-A-H
ko33 - - 3,054 (31) 144050 147,073 5,094 152,167
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 34,986 34,986 10381 45367
Other comprehensive income R M2 EYE
for the year - - - 147 - 147 - 147
Total comprehensive income FRZENHEE
for the year - - - 147 34,986 35133 10,381 45514
Acquisition of non-controlling Wi E R
interests - - - - 2714 2714 (4.897) (2183)
Capital injection by non- FERBRTE
controlling shareholder - - - - - - 4804 4804
Others Hity - - 2 - - 32 - 32
Balance at 31 December2017 R=-ZF—+&
and 1January 2018 +ZA=1+-BR
ZE-\F-f-8H
ZiEe - - 3,086 116 181,750 184,952 15,382 200,334
Profit for the year EREM - - - - 2614 2614 10668 33282
Other comprehensive income EREMEERE
for the year - - - 331 - 331 - 331
Total comprehensive income FREENGEE
for the year - - - 331 22614 22945 10,668 33613
Issue of new shares BITHRG 26 2,500 122,500 - - - 125,000 - 125,000
Share issue expenses RipETHRS - (11,056) - - - (11,056) - (11,056)
Capitalisation issue ERET 26 7,500 (7,500) - - - - - -
Dividend paid to the then BRERERRERE
controlling shareholder - - - - (15,975) (15,975) - (15,975)
Dividend paid to the non- Eff—EHERR
controlling shareholder of FEHERR AR R AR S
a subsidiary - - - - - - (2184) (2184)
Balanceat31 December 2018 R=Z-N\fF
t=A=t-R
ZiEe 10,000 103944 3,086 447 188,389 305,866 23,806 329,732

Note: Other reserve mainly represents the difference between the historical cost of
the shares of a subsidiary paid by the then controlling shareholder and the
consideration paid by the Group in exchange.

M EtREEEZREERERERE N RIS
NABERMDKAEAEBEENREZHD

The notes on pages 82 to 167 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEBRERERX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZZT—N\F+-A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA& 7T 7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FE T FAET
Operating activities REER
Profit before tax B 7% A1 g ) 42,380 58,009
Adjustments for: R
Increase in fair value of investment property & & ) 2 A A& 1L N 15 (2,400) (2,200)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWHE  HEKEE
plant and equipment BB () 1 (88)
Interest income F B U A 7 (176) 2
Depreciation e 9,14 2,738 2,420
Write-down of inventories FE MU 9 = 305
Exchange gain on capitalising shareholder B AL IR B 7k 2 FE X Uk s
loan 35(a) = (249)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M B A Rl — (1)
Finance costs BhE RN 8 18,293 11,368
Operating cash flows before working capital ZEE &S FFITLHESRE
changes 60,836 69,533
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 89,797 (58,915)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables Z S REWEETR L (1) 133,383 (336,052)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HEWEIE  He RIBANR
deposits and prepayments ERAD /() 29,057 (74,965)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B EMNBEFRCRLY), 1M (154,968) 201,589
Increase in other payables, accruals and Efb MR « EETE A
deposits received Relizaegmn 10,667 7,091
(Repayment to)/advance from a Director (B), /R —REZHK (8,247) 5489
Cash generated from/(used in) operating KETZBME(FTA)BRE
activities 160,525 (186,230)
Interest income received B UF B A 176 21
Tax paid EHIE (20,594) (7,213)
Net cash from/(used in) operating BESTERE,(FTE)
activities B& R 140,107 (193,422)
Investing activities RETH
Payments for purchase of property, plant BEWE  BEREZEHIE
and equipment (4,340) (1,213)
Payments for acquisition of intangible asset Uy & S 2 & FE 7008 (7,800) -
Decrease/(increase) of pledged fixed deposit = K E 8A1F 2R 4 (&) 1,956 (1,956)
Sales proceeds received from the disposal of B Ut HEYE - HE
property, plant and equipment R BB IE = 96
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFIARS TR (10,184) (3,073)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

TMEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZZT—N\F+-A=+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB7THIR)
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FE T FAET

Financing activities REEE
New bank instalment loans raised HEERRTHHER 35(a) 12,800 7,923
Repayment of bank instalment loans EBERITOHER 35(a) (14,381) (5,838)
Net (decrease)/increase in factoring loans REEZRCRD),EhFaE 35(a) (19,047) 78,009
Net (decrease)/increase in other Hu BT EECRD),/

bank borrowings EhnFRR 35(a) (67,442) 136,810
Interests on bank borrowings paid EIRITEERE 35(a) (18,293) (11,368)
(Repayment to)/Advance from a related party ({E3i8), /7R B RF1E 5 85K 35(@a) (1,560) 1,560
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT TS 5B 125,000 -
Share issue expenses RN FITHX (11,056) -
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling U B8 FEIEAE #E 25 1< 7R

interests = (2,183)
Proceeds from issue of share capital to BE 2T S S N

non-controlling shareholders FrigR8 = 124
Dividend paid ERTRE (18,159) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESES (FTA),

financing activities FrBREeFHE (12,138) 205,037
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRE B YILIN%E5E 117,785 8,542
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR & MBS EHEY

year 64,198 55,971
Effect of foreign exchange rate change fERFe e 656 (315)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRESZEEY

the year 182,639 64,198
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESREESEEY

the year
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 182,639 64,346
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (148)

182,639 64,198

FRZE 167 B2 MBI EHE MBEHRE 2

—#5 -

The notes on pages 82 to 167 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

82

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July
2012, as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company is Best Sheen Limited (“Best
Sheen”), a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the ‘Corporate Information’
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company, the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 30.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 March
2018.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group” or “Apex Ace Group”)
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HKS"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to
nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) as
detailed in the subsection headed “Reorganisation” under the
section headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2018 (the
"Prospectus”), the Company became the holding company of all
subsidiaries now comprising the Group on 15 February 2018. The
companies now comprising the Group, were under the common
control of the controlling shareholder, Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (“Mr.
Lee"), before and after the Reorganisation. Accordingly, the Group's
financial statements have been prepared on a combined basis by
applying the principals of merger accounting as if the Company had
been the holding company of the Group since the commencement
of the year ended 31 December 2017 taking into account the
respective date of incorporation or the respective date the
combining entities first came under the common control of the
controlling shareholder of the Group where this is a shorter period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in
equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 included the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of the companies comprising the Group as if
the current group structure had been in existence throughout the
years, or since their respective dates of incorporation or first came
under the common control of the controlling shareholder, whichever
is the shorter period. The consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the companies now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure has been in
existence at those dates taking into account the respective dates of
incorporation or acquisition of relevant entities, where applicable.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation. The assets and liabilities of the companies comprising
the Group are combined using the existing book values. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in
the fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination.
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E B RRME

REMBRBRZAEEEE (H)

HE-_ZT—N\FER-_ZFE—+F+=A8
—t+—HIEFENGGBEIEMEZR
Wk HRAEREHRRGEEER
EXRVREASFEBETSAFMNES  #
HEHRBERE  BWUOENEELRE
RNEBFEREAZEARS MR
2 B BB R SRR 1 AR AR SR A R 4
ZHR(USEHHAE)EFE - A&
R - N\FERZZE—tF+=A
=+ —HOBRAWBRRARTIAZYIAR
EEERETSRARNEERAEMNR
2 Mg EEAENZEAR G R
AT RS Ak B EsUEE B
H(miER)) B -

FIBERBEARRBR S RESRHERER
BARKHE AKEBETIAFNE
ENBEERREREETAAH &
BF KR SIS - WEBRRTASER
BEINFWRBTOABHEE  BE
REABBEAFETERIWE &R
KA ERD o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R
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84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(a) New and revised HKFRSs adopted as at 1 January
2018

The Group has applied the following new standards,
interpretation and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”")
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(FRIO- Int 22

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Transfer of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(a) New and revised HKFRSs adopted as at 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Except for the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
adoption of the interpretation and amendments to HKFRSs has
no material effect on the Group's financial position and
financial performance for the current and prior years. The
impacts on HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9
introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
expected credit losses for the financial assets, and general
hedge accounting. Under HKFRS 9, the classification for all of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost remain the same. Key changes in accounting
policies resulting from adoption of HKFRS 9 is impairment of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 replaces the ‘Incurred loss’ model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” model. Expected credit
losses are measured on either of the following bases:

—  Lifetime expected credit losses: the losses that are
expected to result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument; and

— 12-month expected credit losses: the losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within 12
months after the reporting date.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(a) New and revised HKFRSs adopted as at 1 January

2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The Group applies simplified approach to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses on trade and other receivables that
result from revenue and general approach to recognise
12-month expected credit losses on other financial assets. The
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses for trade and other receivables.
The Group has established provision for impairment based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date. For other financial assets, the Group
recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The loss allowance for trade receivables applying the lifetime
expected credit loss as compared to incurred loss model of
HKAS 39 did not result in a material difference and hence did
not result in an adjustment of opening retained earnings as of
1 January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(a) New and revised HKFRSs adopted as at 1 January

2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised in accordance with the
core principle by identifying the contract(s) with a customer,
identifying the performance obligation in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract and
recognising revenue when (or as) the performance obligation
is satisfied. The Group's major revenue is revenue from sales of
goods. The Group recognises revenue when ‘control’ of the
goods underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers. Adoption of HKFRS 15 has no
material impact on the Group's financial results and financial
position.

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group
recognises the related revenue before receiving the
consideration or being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the
contract, then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a
contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the amount
is already due, before the Group recognises the related
revenue.

HKFRS 15 does not prohibit an entity from using alternative
descriptions in the statement of financial position for contract
assets and contract liabilities, provided that sufficient
information is available for a financial statements user to
distinguish between receivables and contract assets, payables
and contract liabilities. The Group does not have any significant
contract asset and continues to use the term “Customer
deposits received” instead of contract liability in the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

Up to the date of this report, HKICPA has issued the following
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
which are not yet effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2018. The Group has not early applied
these new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases '

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts *

ERFITREEBIIEBMKEHREE

Al (4&)

(b) EFEMIEM R AR RERS
STE B SR E 2
BEARLOE EESHHLE
BEHBUTRZE—/\&E—H—H
FItA 2 & SRR I R A 2 BT AT R
EEETRE - ETARRE - K%
B3 R & B SRR R 4R D
REHE RAGIE TR - AT A
R

BRMBREER e

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment '

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business *
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment of Features with Negative
Compensation '
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material 2

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendments, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures !
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle'!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

£ Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January

2020

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

Except as disclosed below, the directors of the Company (the
“Director(s)") anticipate that the application of the new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the financial performance and positions of
the Group.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classify cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and present them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As set out in note 28, total operating lease commitment of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 amounting to HK$930,000 .
The Directors do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting policy would result in
significant impact on the Group's financial performance but it
is expected that certain portion of the lease commitments will
be required to be recognised in the Group's statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for investment property which is
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below, and in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, and interpretations issued by HKICPA, and accounting
policies generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise the
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company:

has the power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use the power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Business combination involving entities under common

control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been consolidated from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the

controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is

a shorter period.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

€))

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, when applicable, or the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition under HKFRS 15 for the year ended
31 December 2018

Sale of electronic components:

Revenue from the sales and distribution of products is
recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being at the point the products are delivered to the customer’s
premise and the customer has accepted the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts and returns.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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94 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED BRI T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition under HKFRS 15 for the year ended

31 December 2018 (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases:

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered

by the lease term.

Interest income:

interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

Revenue recognition under HKAS 18 for the year ended

31 December 2017

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods

sold:;

(i) rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the lease term; and

(i) interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs, less their estimated residual
value, if any, over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis at the following annual rates:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the unexpired term of lease

Leasehold improvement 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

Useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. The gain or loss on disposal or
retirement of an asset is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at fair value.
Gain and loss arising from change in the fair value of
investment property is included in profit or loss in the period

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method and includes all costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less
estimated selling expenses. At the end of each reporting
period, inventories are assessed for impairment and the
carrying amount is reduced to its net realisable value with the

impairment loss recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(f) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance

lease obligation.

APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED YBRIEIZERARA A

4

BEXEFEHE (&)

(d)

(e)

®

REWE
REMERFHERRES R RME
BAREENYE - REVMEIIGRR
KA (BERZKA)TE - BRI
Rt REMERAVEFE -
BREMERAFEZESMELEZK
SREBEREEME AR -

S UES NI T s LIE S T
REE A BTN TR A R
(BRI R ETERR - R 1EHERY)
B 2 AE A IR S 18 (IR A
B2 R ERSRE R REREY
WA E) R E L LR BR
AL -

e
TFEARBRA KA SR FENEEE
IR o RS TH{E A AN F A AR
AE WBREMAAERBAA - T
RS B B Al 77 3 = H IR RS
R AR SU T EE A MR AN » A] B3R B
THRTEHA I & IS SRR S AT S &
FAXETE - RERSHR FEM
FHRUE - BRREESFEREE A
AERE - MREBESRRNE
mATER o

HE

EHEM RS A ENBAE D
[ f 2 O] ¥R ¥ TR ARy - E
ANBERRENE - fTAEMESE

AN ERELHE -

DURERERANEE  BRNEE
IR 2 A FE - i RBEE
BeEHEXNRRREVLER
RAEEEE -HHBEAZHEER
EREAMBINARS SRERE
BfE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(9)

()

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contact asset is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9 and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional.

Customers’ deposits are recognised as a contract liability when
the customer pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also
be recognised

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
on financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, and bank
balances and cash). The amount of expected credit loss is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit loss
represents the expected credit loss that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month expected credit loss
represents the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit loss for trade
and other receivables that result from revenue. The expected
credit loss on these assets are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings based on its
historical observed default rates which is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. For other financial assets, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month expected
credit loss, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime expected credit loss. The assessment of whether
lifetime expected credit loss should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as
at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

Where lifetime expected credit loss is measured on a collective
basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant increases
in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:
Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and
other receivables are each assessed as a separate group);

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
(Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each separate group continues to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime expected credit
loss are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-months expected credit loss at the

current reporting date.

For expected credit loss on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be determined, the
Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risk are taken into account by adjusting the cash

shortfalls being discounted.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount

of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

All the Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies adopted for the Group'’s

financial assets are set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment on financial assets below),
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost less any identified impairment

losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include: (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty; (i) default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; (iii) it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
(iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, such as trade receivables, are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in the subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

106 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED H(EBREIERERA A

4

EXREFEEE)
(hy £HIAGE)

THEE(R-Z2-N\F—-—A—H
EREBMBHREERFEINRA)
()

EEREERE (&)
WEEFFHRENSHEE (W
B HREWARR) HIR &R AR
B - BRFIEESRENTEIR
ABRAEENENBELSSR ©
A BB T EE MR ERE
BRI B4 R YR IR A B HV B
KRBT EBEARRW AT RBEL -

IRBHEKAARNEBEEM
T OEAREERENTEERIR
B - R EEEEINBRER - WK
BEMNFHERZSREERER
MEREREFFARRSTEREM
EZEREE

MIEBAAARNEREEMNS @ M
BEEANSRREENREERR
RELREENRITM S ERER,
Bt ERREREREME 2
EEAE - DAUREBBENERS
BAE R -

FAETREENRAERERZAE
ESIEHAR - HEE B AR KBRS -
HEREE T BB E BB EREDA -
BRERFREEMNEHNIBENE
R BEZREERFE R SEAW
BIFF - AR B AR AN - B
YElz ATEMEEF IR - Al AR
BE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

All the Group’s financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to a Director and
related party and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Upon application of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018, the liability
is subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15. Prior to 1 January
2018, the liability is subsequently measured at the higher of
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date and the amount

recognized less cumulative amortisation.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the relevant group
entities are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the Group transfers the
financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(@

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity period of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)}

)

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
inventories

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its

assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

4

12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

O}

(m)

(n)

APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED YR iE

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes, which are defined
contribution schemes, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(o) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity
that is preparing its financial statements (“reporting entity”).

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to a reporting entity if that person:

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the reporting
entity;

has significant influence over the reporting entity;
or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting
entity.

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the
following conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the reporting entity are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the reporting
entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If
the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
reporting entity;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next reporting period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. Such assets are tested for impairment annually, and/or when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amounts, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market price less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the expected credit loss which uses a lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowances for trade receivable are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement and
estimates in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past collection
history, ageing analysis of the receivables, current creditworthiness
of customers, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such difference
will have impact on the carrying amount of trade receivables and the
impairment loss on trade receivables in the reporting period in
which such estimates have been changed. Management reassess
the provision at each reporting date.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of trade receivables are
approximately HK$508,953,000 (2017: HK$642,336,000). No allowance
for impairment is made on trade receivables at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$2,119,000).

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made based
on the ageing, estimated net realisable value and subsequent sales
of inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and the allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. At 31
December 2018, the carrying amounts of inventories are
approximately HK$84,834,000 (2017: HK$174,631,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2018, no written down of inventories was
made (2017: HK$305,000).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. The determination
of the fair value involves assumption of market conditions. The
Directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group's investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The movements of fair value of the
investment property are set out in note 15.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group at invoiced value, net of returns and discounts.
The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue is at a point in time.
in the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. An analysis of the
Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t+—-HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TR

Sales of goods HEED

3,717,611 2,840,308

Segment information

The executive Directors, who are the chief operating decision-makers
("CODM"), review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the
operating segments based on these reports. Segment information
reported internally was analysed on the basis of the type of products
sold and activities carried out by the Group’s operating division. The
Group is currently operating in three operating segment as follows:

(@)  Memory products;

(b)  Dataand Cloud products; and

(c)  General components.

Management assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of gross profits. The accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as those described in note 4
above.

As the segment assets and the liabilities are not regularly reported to

the Directors, the information of reportable segment assets and
liabilities is not presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 WzmKkoHEFR (&)

Segment information (Continued) DEHER (F)
The following tables represent segment information of the Group TREINRETEREZAEERZF
provided to the management for the years: B2 DEER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Segment revenue oW
Memory products EIEBER 2,344,048 1,799,083
Data and Cloud products YR HEERE R 935,068 655,122
General components BATH 438,495 386,103
Total reportable segment revenue Al 2Ry P S EEE 3,717,611 2,840,308
Segment results DEBKAE
Memory products SERER 69,642 72,255
Data and Cloud products ST E D 54,670 41,637
General components BATH 53,748 27471
Total reportable segment profit AE2RSHaFEE 178,060 141,363
Other income HA A 3,944 2,496
Fair value change of investment property KEYENTEE 2,400 2,200
Finance costs A& B AR (18,293) (11,368)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB MRIBITE
equipment (2,738) (2,420)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADBLERT (120,993) (74,262)
Profit before tax B F BT A 42,380 58,009
Income tax expenses FriSfim s (9,098) (12,642)
Profit after tax M Fi 18 m A 33,282 45367
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated EXE2®mz HEMEIE 9|\a‘|3%)f'F$Z
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales for the Was o REFE - BIEDEHHEE -
years. Segment profit represents the gross profit earned by each s RIS D EBATEER o

segment.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The following table sets out
information about the geographical location of (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non-current
assets. The geographical location of customers is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location of the non-
current assets other than deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and intangible asset is based on the physical
location of the assets.

6

Wz K o #RE # (4)

DERER ()

1 35 & R
AREBUREE - TREIIE()AKE
KEINBEF W M () NEEIFERBE
EMEMERRINER - TPAMIEM
ENERTPHAEN - SERBEE (W
ME - BELIRBANETLEENC N
BeRIN BN EZEEEZBR
g -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
THET FET
Revenue from external customers KEIMPEFE R
Hong Kong 55 942,091 421,363
The PRC =8 2,743,533 2,391,476
Others Hi 31,987 27,469
3,717,611 2,840,308
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TLF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
TFExT FHETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Hong Kong &5 98,476 95,961
The PRC A 6,172 6,902
104,648 102,863
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E B RRME

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 WzmKkoHEFR (&)

Segment information (Continued) DEHER (F)

Information about major customers FEEFER

The Group's revenue from customers which accounted for 10% or REBERBEREERBEWZE10%HA E
more of the Group's total revenue are as follows: NEFPHKEAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Customer A ZEA 547,499 362,412

Customer B E4=T:] N/ATIE A= 345,087
Sales to customer A and customer B are included in the segment of MEFPAREFPBEEHE D RIFTAHEE
sales of Data & Cloud products and segment of sales of Memory HEEEnERDBRLDIEEERS D

products respectively.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * BB W ARG AR EE AU 100604 L o
revenue of the Group.

7 OTHERINCOME 7 HtlA

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2018 2017

—EB-N\E —F—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Bank interest income RITHEIA 176 21

Rental income A 1,005 1,620
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WFE REERR

equipment = 88

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBA RS = 11

Sundry income FIEWRA 2,763 756

3,944 2,496
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e B R R

8

FINANCE COSTS

8 BEMK

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=+—RHLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —TLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Discounting charges on factoring loans RIBERZBRTH 9,869 6,838
Interests on other bank borrowings HiRTEEF B 8,424 4,530
18,293 11,368

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging and (crediting):

9 BREEANER

B A5 A M AN BR K (REA) AT B IR

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR ZFEERAK
an expenses 3,539,551 2,698,640
Write-down of inventories FEHOR - 305
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN 5
— Current year — KEE 1,255 1,125
— Overprovision for prior year — I —FEEERE - (20)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEREETE
equipment 2,738 2,420
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMEREBE
equipment 1 -
Listing expenses LEWRX 5,423 14,676
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) R R (W) 5 1,653 (1,845)
Operating lease charges in respect of TH REF K EHES
land and buildings 2,189 1,697
Commission expenses HEeER 32,388 6,766
Staff costs including Director's emoluments B T A(BIFEEE)
— Basic salaries and allowance — AR FH @ FOERL 36,449 23,386
— Contributions to defined contribution — A EHFGRRGH B
retirement plans 2,513 1,788
— Messing and welfare — BERKEF 1,402 1,021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

10 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10 EEFMRANVESHFMAL
PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ remuneration @) EEFHH
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors for the year FA-BENHENESHMS W
were as follows: T
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-N\H+=ZA=+—HL
FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name ®Z inkind contributions Total
e 2E
e RENRZ BIRFHEIMHK #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET BT TEx
Executive Directors: HiTEE
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong ERNEE 667 720 33 1,420
Mr. Lo Yuen Kin BT EE 305 50 17 372

Independent non-executive Directors: 1/ JES7TEFE -

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui SR/NE A 143 - - 143
Mr. Yim Kwok Man BB AL 143 = = 143
Dr. Chow Terence FPEHREL 143 - - 143

1,401 770 50 2,221
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e B HRRE

10 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10 EEFMRAVESHMA L (E)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) ESHM(E)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tH&+=-A=+—HL
FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name B2 Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2E
we REMRZ  RIKGTEIER et
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FEL
Executive Directors: HiTEE :
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong ZERNEE - 1679 95 1774
Mr. Lo Yuen Kin ErxBi4 - 240 12 252
- 1919 107 2026

Fees paid to executive Directors were mainly for services as
Directors. Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to
executive Directors shown above were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Group.

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their services as Directors.

Mr. Cheung Siu Kui, Mr. Yim Kwok Man and Dr. Chow Terence
were appointed as the Company’s independent non-executive
directors on 15 February 2018. During the year ended 31
December 2017, all independent non-executive Directors have
not yet been appointed and received nil directors’

remuneration in the capacity of Directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

10 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration

EEFHRENESHFMAL (B)

(b) AERESHMAL

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one
Director for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
details of whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in
note 10(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining four
highest paid individuals during the years are as follows:

BE_ZE—N\FER-_ZE—tF+=
A=+—HLEFESF  AEER
EEEFMALEEARAAR—RE
F - HHFSFHBR LXMW 100) B
Eo-FARTHERSTMALN
B an T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZE—+F
HK$'000 HKS'000
THET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMEE 10,387 4,195
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 50 30
10,437 4,225
The emolument of the remaining four is within the following STV E N T A TEHE :

bands:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2017
—ET—tF
Number

N

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

=% 1,000,000 77T

1,000,001 #7TE 1,500,000 7 7T
1,500,001 57T 2 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 T Z 2,500,000 7T
5,500,001 78 7T £ 6,000,000 8 7T

N = |

—

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the Directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years. In addition, the Directors have not waived
any emoluments during the years.

REFR  AREYEREAESHA
HEETFMALTINHH  (FREEE
AR E IMARE B B RBHAER
BERAE - N REFAMBESRN
REMME -
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e B R R

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE N FBBHEX

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=+—RHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Current tax: BNERTIE -
Hong Kong profits tax BEENER 9,022 12437
PRC tax hEFIR - 218
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFEE (GRRERE) BETR
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH (90) 4
Under-provision in prior years — PRC tax BEFERETE —PEHE 70 -
9,002 12,659
Deferred tax (Note 25) IRAEFLIE (B 5T 25) 96 (17)
Total income tax expense recognised in FRRIBEER TSR 258
profit or loss for the year 9,098 12,642

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKS2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million. For the year ended 31
December 2017, Hong Kong profits tax was provided at a rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiary of the Company is 25%. No
Enterprise Income Tax has been provided for the year ended 31
December 2018 as the PRC subsidiary has no assessable profit for the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

1T INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) N FEHEX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAZEHRAXEGAERREMS
before tax per the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other E WS R PR B AT A SRR T
comprehensive income as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—BE-)\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before tax B T BT i A 42,380 58,009
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of R 165% 2 BRAMEHHEAED
16.5% (2017:16.5%) HME(ZZE—+F 1 165%) 6,993 9,571
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI A B &
tax purpose 2,112 4,013
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBRWA 2 BT E
tax purpose (432) (364)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A SRR ERRIEEE
previously not recognised 2B E = (302)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERHIBEIB  BGETE 1,024 -
Tax effect of deductible temporary RAER TR RS = R
differences not recognised B E (100) (28)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 E fth T35 % L& ~ B A 7
operating in other jurisdictions BMERRZ RS2 (314) (252)
Tax effect of concessionary tax rate BEMERNHRETE (165) -
(Over)/under-provision in prior years, net BEFE (BEEE),
BETRRE (20) 4
Income tax expense for the year FAMERAX 9,098 12,642
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREN
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-)N\fF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Earnings BZF|
Profit for the year attributable to ownerof — ZRA T #EA A FE1E 5 A% K
the Company 22,614 34,986
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12

13

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

12

BREF (&)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
Number of ordinary shares TEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FtEtEEIREREFINEH
for the purpose of basic earnings per share HOE IS INAE L 8 950,000,000 750,000,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares as presented
above has taken into account of the Reorganisation and the
Capitalization issue of 749,999,900 shares, which is effective on 16
March, 2018, the listing date of the Company. Accordingly, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue have been
adjusted retrospectively as if it was effective from 1 January 2017.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company did not
have any dilutive ordinary shares for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of final
dividends of 0.6 HK cent per ordinary share, totally HK$6,000,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, subsidiaries of the
Company made the following distributions:

13

EXEIHEBRMNEFHEEFTAE
48 N & ARl B 17 749,999,900 I i% 15 T
EHEBETERARAMETBH -F
—NFZA+RBEM - Bt - BE81T
TEBRNEFHHRECELBRAZE K
MR ZE—+F—HA—BRBEK-

BEZSRBEEET  RRAEKRAQF
REBEE_ZE—-N\FER-_FT—tF+=-A
=t+—HLFEMETANETT @R -

BRE
EEgREMEBEE_T—N\E+ A
—t—HLEFERNRERESHRLE
A% 0.6 1l - 48 %8 46,000,000 T ( ==
—tF o E) o

PR HIR 2 18 12 5 9 R B B B 3 8 770
BEPRER AR -

REBEE-ZE—N\FE_F—tF+=8
=+—HIEFE  ARAMNBAREIE
HATDIK

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT

Dividend declared and paid to its then
controlling shareholder by

1) L B A4 AR R

Apex Team Limited ([ Apex Team ])

Apex Team Limited (“Apex Team”) Bk RR TR IR S 15,975 -
Dividends declared and paid to Data Star Inc. ([ Data Star | ) A 3F42 A%

non-controlling shareholder by IR B IR RS HI AR B

Data Star Inc. (“Data Star") 2,184 =
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y%¥ - BERRE
Leasehold Furniture ~ Computer
landand  Leasehold and  andoffice Motor
building improvement fixtures  equipment vehicle Total
HEIH EKR
RkEF HELE HEREE WARE nE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThER FhEL ThEL ThEL ThEL TEL
Cost KA
At T January 2017 RZE—+E—-f—H 50027 1,271 920 1483 313 54014
Additions NE - 11 23 359 820 1213
Disposal & - - - (35 (329) (360)
Exchange realignment B 456 - - 1 ZS] 510
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+5+-A=1t-H
1 January 2018 kZE-\F-A-H 50,483 1,282 943 1,818 851 55,377
Additions NE - 384 64 587 1,414 2,449
Disposal HE - - - (7 - 7
Exchange realignment ERAZ (314) - - 9 (43) (366)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\5+-A=1+-H 50,169 1,666 1,007 2,389 2,222 57453
Accumulated depreciation ZHIE
At T January 2017 RZE—+F-F-H 1057 41 63 549 297 2,007
Charge for the year ERXH 1692 25 181 269 2 2420
Disposal HE - - - (28) (324) (352)
Exchange realignment B % - - 3 12 39
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+5+-A=1t-H
1 January 2018 kZE-\E-A-H 2,773 297 244 793 7 4,114
Charge for the year FRTH 1,700 304 191 349 194 2,738
Disposal e - - - (6) - (6)
Exchange realignment 5 AR (34) - - (4) (3) (41)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+-A=t-H 4,439 601 435 1,132 198 6,805
Net book value REFE
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+-A=t-H 45,730 1,065 572 1,257 2,024 50,648
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=t-H 47710 985 699 1025 844 51,263

R-Z—N\E+-A=+—H8 284
405170008 Tz E L REFE K
A UERRTAEEZ —RIBITEE
(ZZ—+F : 4193900087

The leasehold land and building of HK$40,517,000 have been
mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$S41,939,000).




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The net book value of leasehold land and building at the end of the

years are analysed by the term of the leases are as follows:

14 ¥ BERRE(E)
REFRZBEELHMRETZ REFE
BHEBAMT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
In Hong Kong REH
— Medium term leases — R EHE 40,517 41,939
In the PRC AHRE
— Medium term leases —rmEIfEE 4,358 4,824
— Long term leases — RHEIEE 855 947
45,730 47710
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 BEYE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
At fair value BAFE
At 1 January n—A—H 51,600 49,400
Fair value adjustment NEEFARE 2,400 2,200
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 54,000 51,600

The Group's investment property is a commercial property situated
in Hong Kong, held on medium term leases and leased out to third
parties. The investment property was revalued by RHL Appraisal
Limited and International Valuation Limited as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 respectively on an open market value basis. They are
independent professional valuer, who have among their staff holding
recognised and relevant professional qualification with recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

15

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 15 BREWXE(E)
The valuation at 31 December 2018 was arrived by adopting the RZZE-N\F+A=+—HrHER
direct comparison method where comparison based on price MEELLEE - BMRBAIEL B ED
information of comparable properties is made. Comparable BRAEAMETER . X BERUE
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed and HENAIELBRMESE AN - WiFH
carefully weighed against all the respective advantages and REZMENRBNE - A TFLER
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison BEAE RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H
of capital values. The valuation at 31 December 2017 was arrived by K E TR T IS E RGEHKAREE
adopting the market approach and employing a combination of REBE K RRBEBENEENES
investment method and comparison method by taking into account WARSEERMEELDESZREE
of the rental income derived from the existing tenancy with due B BBERZEWMEMRNNSHTHE
consideration of their respective the then market values, which are BRAALIR -
then discounted for the respective remaining lease term of the
tenancy of the property.
The investment property has been mortgaged to secure general KEMEDEF - UEMR T —N\F
banking facilities granted to the Group at 31 December 2018 and EZZT—+tF+_A=+—HARTAE
2017. B —RIRTTRLE ©
Fair value measurement: NFEFE -
Fair value measurements are categorised into the three-level fair ATEAESHEA=ZRRATFEERR (T
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The REEMBHRELENEBRAFES
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined )  RTFEFESENERIELEL
with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs T ERMATAE ABBEN TR R
used in the valuation technique as follows: BENRBETE
Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for -8 — HREEXEERNERTSIR
identical asset or liabilities B RE
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within FoH — BEEXBEBEUHERHAZE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability (BE—RABEZRERIN)
Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability F=H — EEXEENTIHRRHAZR
Details of the Group's investment property and information about FRNAEBREMENFBEREBATF
the fair value measurements for the year are as follows: BrFEHERFIIOT -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R B B=& Lo
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHAT FHET
Recurring fair value REHEQAFEFTE
measurements
Commercial property MR B BN EEME
located in Hong Kong
31 December 2018 == \eEr= B == - 54,000 - 54,000
31 December 2017 F = e B =—[8 - = 51,600 51,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

15

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the year in which they occur. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the fair value measurements for the
investment property are transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy. The transfer is due to change of valuation technique
that direct comparable method is adopted for valuation of
investment property at 31 December 2018 while income
capitalisation method was adopted to value the investment property
at 31 December 2017. The change of valuation technique resulted in
a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value in
the circumstances. The impact on the change in valuation technique
is not material. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
for both years and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for year ended
31 December 2017.

The fair value measurement for investment property as at 31
December 2018 is categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value of investment property is determined using direct
comparison method by reference to sales price of comparable
properties which is publicly available. Relevant comparable
properties are analysed and considered with adjustments including
location, time, size, building age and others as appropriate. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

The fair value measurement for investment property as at 31
December 2017 is categorised as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value is determined by discounting a projected cash flow
associated with the property using discount rates that reflect current
market assessment of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
the cash flows.

Key unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment property as
at 31 December 2017:

key unobservable

15

As at

Valuation technique inputs 31 December 2017
FTERATEE R=Z—+tF
fRE R WA BE +=ZHA=+—8H

REWE (&)
AEBBRA/ANFEBRERFERE
TERSHRAGE -BE_T\F
TZAZ+—HLEFE REVEHOR
FEAEHATEERNE=RBASE
- BREET R NME ERMEE A
BRI N\F+_A=+—HKE
MEHERMERLBE TR -F
—tF+ A=+ —BEREMEMHER
Rin s ERNMO% - HERMEE G
AEREFRAEERRZBATHRF
B HERMEEZELTEN - KXW
HEE F—REX-_Qz2EAHRES
B OmMRBE_T—tF+ZA=+—
REFEREEARERE =4 -

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—RH KEY
ENRFEAENBR/RTFEERE -
o WEMENRFETERZ2ENR
MG EMLENEXEE KRR
BLBOAMETE - HHEBRAIELRYE
FRUBEL - BERE K/ B R E A (A
R FRETUADTREE - ZHETE
REZNBABB ST FHRNER -

NZZE—+F+ZA=+—RH KEY
ENRAFEAEDSBERRAFEBRFE=
o RFEVEBRAMBEZTEYER
BORAR S REREETE  ZWREK
ARBRERMSHRERESELEE
B M ET TR A o

W_R—tE+=A=+—H HBE
MERITEEEAHESTAREES A
Bk

Inter-relationship between
Key unobservable inputs and
fair value measurement
FTERTBEBABRER
AFEFEZENEERR

Income capitalisation
method

Yan B AR

Capitalisation rate
(per annum)

FER R

Market unit value
per square feet

s EAEE
(SFHR)
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3.05%-3.20%

HK$17,500

17,500 7% 7T

Increase in the capitalization rate, decrease
in fair value of the investment property

BAERIBN - WEMERH R FHERD

Increase in market unit value, increase in
fair value of the investment property

TS BEAEEEN - REMED
AFERH
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 15 BEWEGE)
The movements during the years ended 31 December 2017 and REBEZZT—+FRZZE-—N\F+ZA
2018 in the balance of the Level 3 fair value measurements are as “+—HEFERE=-RAFENEL
follows: R EEBINT -
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H 49,400
Unrealised gain from fair value adjustment included in st A& Z AFERAEELZ
profit or loss RER Uz
— Increase in fair value of an investment property — B MENTFELL M 2,200
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-E—+E+-A=+—H
M—T—-N\F—H—H 51,600
Transfer to Level 2 AL (51,600)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NE+=-_A=+—H =
The gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from the FARERERZBWEZELEEFTREFE
investment property held at the end of the year. R EDE -
16 INVENTORIES 16 #FE

As at 31 December

W+=B=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
F#T FET
Trading inventories B5F8 84,834 174,631
17 TRADE RECEIVABLES 17 EBEFZERRERER

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—~H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Trade receivables 2 Z MR 508,953 644,455
Less: allowance for impairment R ERE — (2,119

508,953




17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on open
account terms, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The balance of the business is on open
account terms which is often covered by customers' letters of credit
or is factored to external financial institutions. The credit terms vary
from 1 day to 120 days after the monthly statement. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and their carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date:

17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

BEZRWIRER (&)

AEBMEERFNE SEREZUHE
ERET MR —RABMNKIE-
NEEREFNETHESERBENER
FRERAESREZIINPLBEE - 8
BN T 1HEAERRKEI120H - XEH
HHEARWE BN RIBEESEEET - &
WREEERR EEESTHEND
st  BHBKEE AR E - BEEE
EEEE N ERE -

2 5 AR IR R A e BRI o AT a0
T

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 183,335 304,722
31-60 days 31260 H 100,064 172,688
61-90 days 61 %90 H 87,673 104,106
More than 90 days 90 B £ 137,881 62,939
508,953 644,455
Less: Allowance for impairment W RE R - 2,119
508,953 642,336

At 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$222,387,000 (2017: HK$133,752,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 17 EBZERWERR(E)

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired is as follows:

AEEDBBERRENE FEKRIERR
HRRER DATEAT -

As at 31 December

R+=-—B=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Less than 1 month past due wmHT~E—1E A 96,179 89,930
1 to 3 months past due BEA—2={0A 85,763 32,354
More than 3 months past due AR m = A A 40,445 11,468
222,387 133,752

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers in respect of which management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality up to the date of this
report and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account based on lifetime expected credit loss unless
there is no expectation of recovery, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly. Details of
impairment assessment of trade receivable for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 33. The movement in the
allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as follows:

EEHERBENE S RBKERESH
BUEPER -t ARBEARS
A RECGEAEMBEEAEHAZ
SHEBMPRERBBIRE - RERE
RRBAELRERYE -

B 5 R WRSUR BB R R BB E R
B MEESHMERREZREZER
T REEBRERNE SRR M
W BHRBE_T-—NF+RA=+—
B 1EFE 8 5 e UCR TR B R B R
IBENHIEES3 - RFRZREBEED
mr

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 2,119 2,119
Written off [k (2,119) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 2,119

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed that the expected
credit losses for trade receivables is immaterial and thus no loss
allowance for trade receivables was recognised. At 31 December
2017, the individually impaired receivable of HK$2,119,000 related to
a customer who had financial difficulties and the Group had filed a
winding up petition against this customer. The Group did not hold
any collateral over the balance.

N-BE—-NE+-A=+—8 X&£H
EFEESERERNESEEEBY
TEX AT EERE S ERENES
BREEB R ET—+E+_-_A=+—
B - 8% 8 & Yk 3R TE 2,119,000 78 7T ER
—AEBRVHRENTFEERE  BA%
EEHZEFREBRES - A5EH
ERZERTE T AERR -
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 17 ESEWERERGE)
At 31 December 2018, trade receivables of the Group with an RZE-N\F+_A=+—0 &x&EH
aggregate carrying amount of HK$367,320,000 (2017: 48R (B A367,3200008 (=T —+
HK$466,805,000) have been assigned to banks to secure the general F 1 466,80500078 ) 2 B B REWERE
banking facilities of the Group. SBLTRIT - LWERAREE —REITH
Zé o

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 18 HEWRRE RERBAARE

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Other receivables H fth & U 5RIR 2,277 171
Deposit for purchase RiiEe 60,049 91,812
Prepayment of listing expenses L TRZENFKIE = 1,470
Utilities and other deposits KB RHEAMIES 586 664
Prepaid expenses AR 3,339 1,191
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WM BERRENDNES
plant and equipment 1,891 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of Wi E R EEMN D IRS (M)
intangible asset (note) 7,800 -
75,942 95,308
Less: amount classified as current assets W O BEARYEENSEE (66,251) (95,308)
Amount classified as non-current assets SEARIRBEENSTE 9,691 -
Note: Itis earnest deposit paid to a third party ("JV Partner”) for formation of Misy . ZEZEEGKIELAT(TE54 A
a joint venture company (“JV Company”). The Group entered into a gl maE=A(&6%E4 ) SZNE
non-legally binding Memorandum of Understanding with the JV HES  AEFEEAZEBYITTESE
Partner. Subject to the entering into a formal joint venture agreement, BARNNESE - FEITERAE
the Group and the JV Partner shall establish a JV Company and the JV Wi AEBHEALEYEER TS
Partner will transfer the distribution rights of a range of products BNT MELBEBMEY AT HE
granted by various electronic component manufacturers to the JV ERZEEF R EE R D —
Company. R EMB D HHE -
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19 BANKBALANCES AND CASH 19 SBITEHRAS

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Cash at banks and on hand IRITRFHERE 182,639 64,346

Pledged fixed deposit B E HFR > 1,956

182,639 66,302
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits held RITEHRLACBRASIFEN SR
with financial institutions and carry interest at prevailing market rates. BENERER  BRBITMSN X

é‘ o
As at 31 December 2018, the Group places approximately R-ZF-N\F+ZA=+—0 A&H
HK$9,337,000 (2017: HK$5,493,000) in banks in the PRC, the mE A ERTT 7 Bl 77 B 499,337,000/ 7T (=
remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations of T—+F 54930008 7) - EBRZAH
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. TR 78 4 ) 4R B S BEE I 3R B K R D1l AR
PR

As at 31 December 2018, there is no pledged fixed deposit. At 31 R-ZF-N\F+ZA=+—0 " #ES
December 2017 the fixed deposit of HK$1,956,000 was pledged to BERTHER - RZF—tF+ZA
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group and it had =+—H  SEMTE BT H1,956000/8
maturity of three months. TERAEERE —RBRITMEZE

R ZEFHRIBMER=MERA -
20 TRADE PAYABLES 20 EZEMERR

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Trade payable B I ENRHK 205,889 360,857




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

20 TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 20 ESEMARMGE)
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables presented based on AEEREREHRLZEREH27|8
the invoice date at the end of each reporting date, is as follows: B I RMNERNERRITAT -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ZE—+F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT FHET

0-30 days 02 30H 146,716 190,721

31-60 days 31260 H 46,807 120,533

61-90 days 61290 H 11,045 48,368

More than 90 days 90 AN E 1,321 1,235

205,889 360,857

21 OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS 21 HMEMARIE EFEARE WIR

RECEIVED 2

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—EB-N\EF ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other payables and accruals HAb R FIB R BB A 24,191 18458
Value added tax payables JERTIE(ER 201 10
Customer deposits received BRERFIZS 6,682 1,774
Rental deposit received BENEERS 240 405
31,314 20,647
Customer deposits received represents consideration received from PR PR EAE B R AR
customers for goods before the Group recognises the related REVMRAEFUDORE - BEFES
revenue. Customer deposits of HK$ 1,256,000 included in the balance 1,256,000 LB AR —/\F—A
as at 1 January 2018 were recognised as revenue during the year —H®&S  UREBE_T—-N\F+=
ended 31 December 2018. R=+—HI-FEER AN -
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22 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 22 EN—RESBIRHE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2018 2017

—g— 5 LI

HK$’'000 HKS'000

FET FHET

Mr. Lee Bing Kwong FRNIEE - 8,247
The amount was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and ZHEBIESHEE  EER 2ER

had no fixed terms of repayment. EETEEERR -
23 AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 23 EN—BEEINE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FHEIT
Mr. Lee Chak Hol ("Mr. CH Lee") (note) FEES A ([FEERE D (W) - 1,560
= 1,560
Note: LR
BB REESEE Y RT o

Mr. CH Lee is son of Director, Mr. Lee.

. B l N N
The amount was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and aABIFE S MEE - BER 2ER
(=== p1==]
had no fixed terms of repayment. BEFEEENR -
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24 BANKBORROWINGS

24 RITEE

As at 31 December

Rt+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current liabilities REBEE
Factoring loans REER 205,953 225,000
Other bank loans HARITEN 158,804 226,246
Bank instalment loans RITHEIEK
— portion of loans due for repayment — AR —ERNEEZ BRI S
within one year 8,191 7,182
— portion of loans due for repayment AR—FREEZERE D
after one year which contain (B R EREEET)
arepayment on demand clause 18,320 20,910
Bank overdrafts RITEX = 148
391,268 479,486

(i)

138 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED X ER HiF

The Group bank loans are carried at amortised cost. None of
the portion of the term loans due for repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is
classified as current liability is expected to be settled within
one year.

Factoring loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
effective rate (which is also equal to contractual interest rate)
of 3.92% to 4.97% per annum at 31 December 2018 (2017:
2.87% to 3.70%).

Other bank loans represent import loans, trust receipts loans
and revolving loan which are variable-rate borrowings and
carry effective interest rate ranging from 3.65% to 5.23% per

annum at 31 December 2018 (2017: 2.60% to 4.41%).

Bank instalment loans are variable-rate borrowings and carry
effective interest rate of 1.98% to 2.79% per annum at 31
December 2018 (2017: 1.79% to 2.72%).

Bank overdrafts are variable-rate borrowings and carry interest
at 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) below prime rate per annum.

B IR A A

(i)

AEBRITEFIRBHERATR -
EMHENARERERGHRAD
BRARBEEZ AR —FREEZ
EHERE D BN —F RS

REBRBZEMEE BRZZ
—NF+-A=Z+—BHZEEFEA
E(JHERBEOFE) B32WE
497%( ZZF—+5F : 287%ZF3.70%) °

HiRTERIEEDER - 1*%451
BERRBEREN  BZEMEE-
BR=Z2—N\F+=_A=+— EIZ
BB FEF RN T 365%%523% (=
T—+5F : 260%E441%) °

BT HERBZEMEE  BER=
E-N\E+-A=1+—RHzEESE
FRANF198%F2.79% ( — T —+
1 179%E272%) °

ﬂiﬁiéiii%i‘%uﬁ% RIENEE
R 05% (ZF—+H4F : 05%) HF
FIREHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

24 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
transferred the collection right of certain trade receivables to
financial institutions under factoring agreements, but such
transfers do not qualify for derecognition in the consolidated
financial statements. A transferred asset is derecognised when
the Group transfers the asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The
factoring facilities are secured by pledge of assets and
corporate guarantees executed by the Group and personal
guarantee executed by Mr. Pai Yin Lin (Mr. Pai) (2017: personal
guarantees executed by Mr. Lee, Ms. Lo, Mr. CH Lee and Mr.
Pai). Given that the financial institutions are authorised to
realise and sell the pledged assets in case of default and
guarantee is provided to the transferees, the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to the
transferred assets to the financial institutions. Accordingly, the
transferred assets continue to be recognised in its entirety and

the consideration received is recognised as a liability.

The carrying amounts of the transferred assets and their

associated liabilities are as follows:

24 HRITEEE)

iy REEZZ—-—N\F+—H=1+—H
IEFER - AEBEREBEREwR S
155 T8 5 MW ER R e = e
FomigE  BEEEERAAER
RERE TS HREILIETER - BAE
EEEEENBEEMARNBAR
HHORBROREREES B
AR IEEREEREAE - REME
AE EERIR R AL EATEQRER
MABRFREE(ALE)FTEEARE
R(ZE—F: T4 EBEL
T FEERERALERMERA
BR)BIKFR ENEMEEs
RETEE 4 R mEGE AR R RNIE
MTERELECRBEE - A
EEMABCEZEENEARR
MEREESRIEE - At - B8
REEHEE>IERAREWARER
REAfE-

DR AE RN a A REE
mT

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Trade Trade
receivables receivables
transferred transferred
under under
factoring factoring
agreements agreements
RERE = RSN
EHECES HECES

Carrying amount of transferred assets BEEEERAE

Carrying amount of associated liabilities ~ tBE8 & (& 7 BRE{E

FE S B R FEM AR K
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTAT
366,711 407,426
205,953 225,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(iv)

At 31 December 2018, the banking facilities of the Group were
secured by trade receivables of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$367,320,000, the legal charge over the
investment property of the Group, leasehold land and
buildings of HK$40,517,000 of the Group, insurance policy
executed by a related company, personal guarantees executed
by Mr. Pai, and corporate guarantees executed by the Group.

At 31 December 2017, the banking facilities of the Group were
secured by trade receivables of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$466,805,000, the legal charge over the
investment property of the Group, leasehold land and
buildings of HK$41,939,000 of the Group, bank deposit of the
Group of HK$1,956,000, property of Mr. Lee, properties of a son
of Mr. Lee, properties, securities and deposits owned by the
companies controlled by Mr. Lee, insurance policy executed by
a related company, personal guarantees executed by Mr. Lee,
Ms. Lo, Mr. CH Lee and Mr. Pai, and corporate guarantee
executed by related companies.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the bank instalment loans
were due for repayment as follows, which are based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements
and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause:

24 RITHE(E)

(iv)

RZB—-N\EFE+_A=+—0 &
EEERTRENEETDES
367,320,000 L2 B 5 U R -
REBEEMEZETTHR - A%
EHE -1 MIEF40,517,000787C
—HEERTMELMNRE A%
EFTEAAERRAEBFTERR]
ERIEHEA -

RZE—tF+ZA=+—H &K
EERTHENEEREAS
466,805,000 70 2 B 2 FE MR 7K -
REBEREME LT RL » A%
B E £ i R AEF41,939,00078 7T
REE 2 RITIF 1,956,000 7T
THREZWE - FTRERFZY
¥ ZRARESRAGMES 2D
¥ BHEMGER - —HBEEQFAM
FUMRE - =hE ELL - F
B ERA R EERAERKE
B8N B FTIER IR RIEHA -

RZE-N\FRZZE—+F+=A
=+—R RO BHEREREER
BT TETERABEE B
WE AR IR EREEERZF
2.

=

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHBT
Within one year —F R 8,191 7,182
After one year but within two years —FRERMEA 2,682 2,620
After two years but within five years MEBBRER 6,374 7,151
After five years hFiE 9,264 11,139
26,511 28,092
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25 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25 EEHIEEE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
MERERE BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER
The Group rEE
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-Z—t5—-A—HZ&H 315 ) 306
(Credited)/Charged to profit or loss GtA)/ Mk EERER
for the year (25) 9 (16)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R_E—+F+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2018 FZE-NF-A-HBz&H 290 - 290
Charged to profit or loss for the year Mk EFENER 96 - 96
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\F+-A=+—Hz&4% 386 - 386
The deferred tax assets for tax losses and deferred tax liabilities for AREARIAERNIECHIAEE RINRHK
accelerated tax depreciation relate to income tax in the same B EMECHBRERR —FIAERE
jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement. Therefore, they have WIS BAAR - AR FERES -
been offset in the consolidated statements of financial position. It HERRE MBI R R o
The following are the major deferred tax assets not recognised in the L}\T%*E/\\ﬁ/ﬁ\ MHERREERZER
consolidated statement of financial position: ELMIAAE -

As at 31 December

Rt+=A=+—H

2018 2017

—BE-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Other assets Hih &&= = 42

Tax loss TIEEE 983 -

983 42
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above B AT R B85 FIOR - MU &R
items due to unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31 FTRMIEERRELEHREEE - R_F
December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately —N\F+ZA=+—08 ' AEBZXRH
HK$3,934,000 (2017: Nil) available for offset against future profits. The P R 78 B 48 £93,934,000/8 T ( —Z & — +
tax losses will expire according to the EIT Law. F ) AT HEEAR R - HIEEES

RBEERAEVOREE -
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 MA
Details of the share capital of the Company are as follows: AARIRAEHFEOT ¢
Number of
Note shares Amount
B &E REE S8
HKS
BT
The Company NN
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE BT LBR
Authorised: ETE
Asat 1 January 2017, RZZE—+%—H—AH"
31 December 2017 and —T—tF
1 January 2018 TZA=T—AK
—F-N\F—HF—H 38,000,000 380,000
Increase of authorised share capital A E A (@) 1,962,000,000 19,620,000
As at 31 December 2018 R_B-NE+=-A=+—8 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and allotted: BT RECE
As at 1 January 2017, RZZT—+F—H—-R"
31 December 2017 and ZE—+tF+=ZA=1+—H
1 January 2018 RZZ—N\F—-H—H 1 =
Reorganisation EE| (b) 99 1
Share capitalisation P Nd © 749,999,900 7,499,999
Global offering of shares BHEIREE (d 250,000,000 2,500,000
As at 31 December 2018 RZEBE-NF+-_A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Note: BIsE
(a) On 15 February 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company (a) NR-E—-N\EFE_A+HB ' KABIZ*E
was increased to HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of TE IR AN 35 38 58 IME 3% 1,962,000,000 (% &
nominal value of HK$0.01 by the creation of an additional 1% 0.013%8 7T 2 A% 19 1 A Z= 20,000,000 76
1,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. JC 93 £2,000,000,000 A% & A% E 1E0.01
BITHIRR D ©
(b)  On 15 February 2018, Ace Power Holdings Limited (“Ace Power") and by RZE-—NF_A+EH EEERSE

the Company entered into a share swap agreement pursuant to which
the Company acquired from Ace Power one share in Apex Team,
representing the entire issued share capital of Apex Team, in
consideration and exchange for (a) the allotment and issue of 99
Shares to Best Sheen, all credited as fully paid (under the direction of
Ace Power); and (b) the crediting as fully paid at par the one nil paid
Share held by Best Sheen.

On 16 March 2018, the Company issued a total of 749,999,900 shares
as fully paid at par to Best Sheen by way of capitalisation of an amount
of HK$7,499,999 standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company.

142 APEX ACE HOLDING LIMITED H(EBREIERERA A

RN ([BE]) BARR TN B R
Mg Bt AAR A ERWE &
Apex Team J& 17 (F8& P Apex Team & EB
BEITIRA) + LURER (@) (A2 % &
BT MR ABRSIMER B AR 1D (IR BB
BR) RO BEEMFEN IR
BRI EARIIELSR

R=ZE—N\FE=A+XB  XRFEE
BN TG & ERRA 7,499,999 4 7T
HEERFDBAEANANAERETE
$£ 749,999,900 A& 1% E B 4R A&7 °
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26

27

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note: (continued)

(d) On 16 March 2018, the Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with the global offering of ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company, including, a public offering in Hong Kong of
125,000,000 shares and an international offering of 125,000,000 shares,
in each case at a price of HK$0.50 per share (the "Global Offering”).

For the purpose of presenting the share capital of Group prior to the
Reorganisation in the consolidated statement of financial position,
the balances as at 31 December 2017 represented the consolidated
share capital of the Company and Apex Team.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income. With effective
from 1 June 2014, the cap of monthly relevant income was changed
from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
company of the Group in the PRC participates in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities for its employees. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
wages to the schemes. The local government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of this subsidiary. The only obligation of this
subsidiary with respect to the scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

Total contributions paid or payable to the retirement benefit
schemes by the Group amounted to HK$2,513,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$1,788,000), which had been
recognised as expense and included in staff costs in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the contributions as described above.

26

27

B ()
GERNC))

d RZZE—NFE=ZA+B KQBRE
RETERE™ » 2EEERQARFRE
BB THERAR - BIESBAME
£ 125,000000% A% 0 & B BR # &
125000000 %15 - B S B ATR
0508 ([BIREE]) -

FRERE M AR R K2R EAR 2 A
EEBRAME  RZE—tF+=A8
=+ — AH R I8 AR R Al & Apex Team
KRG IR o

EBIRERIGE

REBEBBERERG MEAESFENEH
BRBMEEEREES MBHIEATE
B ([BESFE]) - EeFTE A
MBI R AT RN T LM FCR IR
B IRIERESHE  AEBRERES
HEZEE S ABBRAR % RETEI1E
HtF - BTN ESA—HE &
REBW A ERMBA2500ETLEE A
30,0008 7T © M FFBIVE H 3K T B I 55
B-aEerilNEERAEBEESD
FEE BRI ALER -

RIFFBERR AR - AEERBE LA
REEE2MAMEEM T BT HEERE
B E B FURIKET B - 2B 2 R ZA 5L
REEAFHFERTEZETAD LA
SUHLIR o I BR T 4 B8 R R AR R R Y B
REMARE R BRERKEESNRIKE
MEME - ZM B AR AR BNE—F
ERREE L AR MK -

BHE_Z—)\H+_A=+—8I%F
- AEEMRAKREREIE s ER
B B2513008 (=T —+F:
1,788,000 7C) - B R AR it A
GABTZREMEERERAB TR

B bt RN AEEHMERLMECR
KBH B
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28 COMMITMENTS 28 EiE
Capital commitments BEAEIE
A non-legally binding Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has AEE - GEBHEERARZZ-N

been entered into between the Group, JV Partner and guarantors on
28 November 2018 for formation of JV Company owned as to 60%

F+—AZTN\RFTLEEZRORNR
ﬁ¢1ﬁ/uﬁ(;§ﬁ¢1ﬁ %) RBRBBRAL

by the Group and 40% by JV Partner whereas the JV Partner, shall BAEKEEREEEHD BT F60% K
transfer a range of distributorship rights held by JV partner to the JV AN EREERF - AR EEBHES

Company in consideration of a payment of no more than US$5 MEERREESERHMFEN— R
million by the Group to JV Partner. DiEE - MAKEFREERENT

Earnest deposit of USST million (equivalent to HK$7.8 million) has
been paid to JV Partner by the Group. The earnest deposit shall be
utilised as part of the payment of the consideration if a formal joint
venture agreement is entered into. At 31 December 2018, the Group
has capital commitment (authorised but not contracted for) for this
acquisition of not more than US$4 million (equivalent to HK$31.2
million).

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
is as follows:

ZR5BEETHNRE -

AEBERAGERH M1 BEX LA
ER7SEEBIL)IMNEESD - MFILIE
NEEhE URESBRAEINRE
B—EH - R_E—NF+-_A=+—
B ANEERLWIEEENE NEE (B
REBRTN)TZR4EEET(HSE
R312BEET) -

LB - WS MR mAASEIT -

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Contracted for but not provided in these EET#4E AN ZEG A&
consolidated financial statements WEREHREE 820 -
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28 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 28 RIE(E)
Operating lease commitments R ERE
The Group as lessee rEBEREBEA

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of leased properties which fall due as follows:

RBEHR - NEELEBYEAEN
TRENATHEEEHEN R R REHR
BN EFEBRMT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Within one year —F R 930 1,676
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEERF(REEREMT) = 487
930 2,163

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and warehouse in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1-2 years with
rentals fixed at the date of signing of lease agreements and do not
include contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment property under operating lease
arrangements. The lease of the investment property is negotiated for
a term of 2 years. The lease agreements include an extension option.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the operating lease receivables
are as follows:

REHENREIZRAKREREGRE
BELHENRIAENERREREMNE
T o KR HRFOSH-—EWF
BRFHOBHEHEEE A TEHENK
AHEE -

AEBEAHEHEA
AEBERBECEHOBELREME -
KhER - REMERPAERE - LY
HERERE - RZE-NER-_ZT—+
F+_A=1+—0 KLBEEEKZE
o

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Within one year —&FR 1,440 405

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_FE2ELF (BREEREMF)

600 =

2,040 405
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e B HRRE

29 ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 19 June 2017, the Group acquired additional 21 % interest in Data
Star from Mr. CH Lee, a non-controlling shareholder of Data Star at
cash consideration of approximately HK$2,183,000, increasing its
interest in Data Star from 51% to 72%. The carrying value of the net
assets of Data Star and its subsidiary, Ascent Way International
Limited was approximately HK$23,319,000 at the date of acquisition.
The additional interest acquired by the Group is as follows:

29 WEBFEEERES

RZZE—+tFNA+NLE AEER
Data Star B — & JEIRARAR B 202 0 e £ UK
8% Data Star 8N 21% H#E R » IS RED
42,183,000 7T + L ER I EH 7 Data Star Y
RERHBS1%IEE 72% « PULEE R © Data
Star R EL [ B A RIRRLEEFR B PR A B A F
BEMREELA233190008 7T « A%
B i 2 FEIMER AT ¢

2017

—T—+tF

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration paid to non-controlling shareholder 2 1< JE#2E J& PR B 0 IR £ K18 2,183
Carrying value of the additional interest acquired BB IMES M AREE 4,897
Gain on acquisition recognised in equity i iR 2 W e 2,714

30 SUBSIDIARIES

30 MEAF

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: B ARFIBENT -
Registered/
Placeand issued and Percentage of
date of fully paid equity attributable
Name incorporation share capital to the Company Principal activities  Place of Operation
i/ ERf
£ EMA R AE R&RRE  ALAAEEREESL IERE Tens
2018 2017
ZE-\F e
Apex Team Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 Investment holding Hong Kong
15 June 2009 1£7 RE R 5
ABRUAES
ZEENERATHRA
Ascent Way International Limited  Hong Kong HKS1 72 72 Sales of electronic Hong Kong
FERRERAT 18 January 2016 17T components Eh
&R HEBFLH
ZERE-ATNB
AVT International Limited Hong Kong HK$4,999,986 100 100 Sales of electronic Hong Kong
7 May 1992 4999986 78 7 components, and BB
EA sales and
—NA=ERA+A integration of
storage system
HEEFLHRHE
RERFRZS
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30 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30 MEAF(E)

Registered/
Placeand issued and Percentage of
date of fully paid equity attributable
Name incorporation share capital to the Company Principal activities  Place of Operation
i/ ERf
8 AR ER A R&RRE  ARAAEEEZESL IEXRE Tgns
2018 2017
ZE2-0\F e
Data Star Inc. British Virgin Islands US52,200,000 72 72 Investment holding Hong Kong
5 January 2016 2200000E7T AR BR
EBRNAS
ZE-"¥-ARA
I-Sky Electronic Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 Properties holding Hong Kong
KREFEBAT 12 June 2000 VBT BENE B
&k
“ERREATA
Jumbo Fame Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands USs1 100 - Investment holding Hong Kong
9 April 2018 ESn BERR A
ABRUAS
- \FEANA
Shenzhen Lisigao Electronics The PRC HK$10,000,000/ 100 100 Sales of electronic The PRC
Company Limited * 18 July 2008 HK$6,000,000 components, and HE
(Note 1) H 1000000037,/ sales of storage
AESRETARAA ZTE/\ELATIA 6000000357 systemand
(R 1) provision of related
supporting service
HEBTILH
REEFRERR
RAERR R
Triumphal Raise Limited British Virgin Islands US§100 100 - Inactive Hong Kong
22 August 2018 100£7T EEE )
REBRIAES
“E-\FNAZ+ZH
Wise King Electronics Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 - Sale of electronic Hong Kong
BREFERAT 23 November 2017 1T components i
Bl HETFLh
“E—tE+-AZ+=H
Note: 5T
1 The subsidiary is registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under 1 B RN E R B RREHREDEEE R 2 I
the PRC law. FEEERE -
% The English name is translated for identification purpose only. i Al o

i
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30 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30 MEAR (&
All the subsidiaries of the Company are limited liability companies. RRARIFIBENBARIREREERAR]
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material non- BAEBRFERERZIF2ENE QT
controlling interests: EIE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of TRINLEEERFERER CAEE
the Group that has material non-controlling interests: F2EMBARZFFIE

Proportion of
ownership interests

Place of and voting rights held by
Name of subsidiary incorporation/ operation non-controlling interests
FERERTEZ
MEAREME Gl v <4 —$:ct BEREERRRERELS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

Ascent Way International Limited (“Ascent Way") Hong Kong
RSB AR 2~ 7 ([HRE) e 28% 28%
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-BLFE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests 9 AR 2 FEIZ AR AE 25 2 S 10,673 10,265
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEIE R R 19,005 10,517
Summarised financial information in respect of Ascent Way is set out BRRRM M BEBEERINMNT - T
below. The summarised financial information below represents X2 BERB B e R EAHHA 2
amounts before intragroup eliminations. B o
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30 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30 KMEAT (&)
Summarised statement of financial position of Ascent Way PRz B A AR R R 2

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets EmEEE 15 22
Current assets MEEE 337,596 367,026
Current liabilities mEAE (269,735) (329,486)
Net current assets mEEEFE 67,861 37,540
Total assets less current liabilities REERREAE 67,876 37,562
Non-current liabilities EREEE (2) 4)
Total equity B 67,874 37,558
Attributable to AT FE(Y

— the Group — REE 48,869 27,041

— non-controlling interests — JEPEARRE RS 19,005 10,517

67,874 37,558
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e B HRRE

30 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30 MBAR(E
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other RRzEEREMEEHBERBE
comprehensive income of Ascent Way
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue W25 1,892,350 1,326,716
Gross profit EH 65,080 45,285
Other income Hig A 1,470 448
Expenses 5 (20,887) (13,083)
Profit before tax R F A1 Y M) 45,663 32,650
Income tax expenses FriSfip = (7,547) (5,505)
Profit for the year F R 38,116 27,145
Profit and total comprehensive income AT 4G 8 F & 2 W AR
attributable to:
— the Group — ARE 27,443 16,880
— non-controlling interests — IR R 10,673 10,265
38,116 27,145
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 24 T IEIEAR#ESS 7 AR &, 2,184 -
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30 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30 KMEAT (&)
Summarised statement of cash flows of Ascent Way R 2B ERERMUE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=T—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) From LESEBIREA (R ) IR R
operating activities 3,360 (34,862)
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEESRIDESFE = -
Net cash inflow from financing activities REEERAIR S F5E 22,656 44,982
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBYIEINESE 26,016 10,120
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR& NI EEY
the year 33,657 23,537
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIRE MIREZEEY 59,673 33,657
Financial support B E
As at 31 December 2018, the Company and AVT International WZE-—NF+ZA=+—H8  KRQF
Limited have issued financial guarantee to banks in respect of K AVT International B it IR B 5% 2 $R 17

banking facilities granted to Ascent Way. B MERITIR P TSR -
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e B HRRE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31

In addition to the balances with related parties set out in the
consolidated statements of financial position and respective notes,
the Group had the following material transactions with related
parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

BELTRS

B MEIRR R M BB TS 26
BBRIN AEBRNFANERETE
TATERRS ¢

() BELRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FH&T
Mr. Lee Bing Kwong (note i) FFRH; A (D
— Rental paid —BfEe 825 783
Nicegoal Limited (note ii) Nicegoal Limited (FfsE i)
— Rental paid —BfEe 546 -
Note: PitsE
(i) The rental expenses were based on the tenancy agreement () HeRIZDIREBEREREEFEE

entered by the Group and Mr. Lee.

(if) Nicegoal Limited is controlled by Mr. Lee. The rental expenses
were based on the tenancy agreement entered by the Group
and Nicegoal Limited.

Rental paid to Mr. Lee and Nicegoal Limited were de minimis
continuing connected transactions exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed
its interest in Able System Limited to Mr. Lee at USS$2.

Mr. CH Lee, son of Mr. Lee held 29 shares of Data Star or 29%
interests in Data Star at 31 December 2016. On 19 June 2017,
CH Lee transferred 21 shares of Data Star to Apex Team and 8
shares of Data Star to Mr. Pai, in consideration of approximately
HK$2,183,000 and HK$832,000 respectively. Profit and total
comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 attributable to Mr. CH Lee amounted to
approximately HK$3,748,000 and equity attributable to CH Lee
at the date of disposal amounted to approximately
HK$6,762,000.
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FISZEVRAITE

(if) Nicegoal Limited B 2= %t A4 #28 #l] ©
HeMIZTDDBREASEENR
Nicegoal Limited&] 32 89FB I M 5E

A4 F 2 %t & K Nicegoal Limited &)
B RERRKENFERE
X WEHRPETLEMHAE
AAZEIA TR IR R B - F R H6
KT HERE

HE-_T—tF+-A=+—HI
FE AEBEL2ETHEER Able
System Limited #) # 2= 1 & T 5%
E o

TREZTFERBERER T —
F+-F=+—H#HData Star 1y
29 MG AE D Bk 20% MR c R —E—+
FXRATNE » TBHEA K Data
Star #9 21 B A% 1D K\ B A% 17 95 Bl 8%
E T Apex Team B A LA RED
A #9 £2,183,000 7 JT & 832,000
TC e BEEGERGAEBRNRER
Sed—dpEac = B =qr =g F5E
MEAEE2ERIRQEN A
3,74800078 7T * M Z2E M R ER K
& B HiE (L= A 40 5 6,762,000 78
o
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31

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

@

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the banking facilities of the Group were
secured by insurance policy executed by a related company
and personal guarantee executed by Mr. Pai. (2017: the
banking facilities of the Group were secured by securities and
cash deposit in name of a related company, property of Mr.
Lee, properties of a son of Mr. Lee, properties of the related
companies, insurance policy executed by a related company,
personal guarantees executed by Mr. Lee, Ms. Lo, Mr. CH Lee
and Mr. Pai and corporate guarantee executed by related
companies). Details of which were set out in note 24.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group executed guarantees to a
bank to secure general banking facilities granted to related
companies. Details of such guarantees are set out in note 34.

Compensation of key management personnel and
related party

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including the amounts paid to the Director as disclosed in note
10(a) is as follows:

31

BELXS (&)
() BELRZ (&)

(b)

RZZE—N\FE+ZA=+—H XK
SERITRE A —BRER AR
SR EE DA R 8 S A PR (EL A JE IR
FEER (T -5 AEERTT
BMEUERRFESMRES - F
RENME  FRERTFOME -
FEARYE - —HBEERABMR
MHRE  FEAE  BERL - FE
YESE A R B R FTEIE A YRR K2 B8
BRAMMERRERIERT) - B
RS BB RE 24

AZE—+F+-_A=+—8B K
SEREEQRMERNRITRE
MERITIELH IR - RS ERFBH
B EE34 -

FTEEEAERBET R

AEBTEERASHM(BEM
F10@EBE XN TEERIE) M
T

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —T—+F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHBT FET

Short-term employee benefits RMHEREEREA 10,125 5,581
Contributions to defined contribution TREIGRAREMTEIHR

retirement benefits scheme 118 161

10,243 5,742
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31

32

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel and
related party (Continued)
During the year, short-term benefits and post-employment
benefits for close family members of Mr. Lee paid and
contributed by the Group are as follows:

31

EEFRS (HE)
(b)y FEEEBAEBRBEETRIN(E)

FA - AKECAFEERERK
X 8 325 2 52 BRAR ) BOR IR E A
FRYEERINT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
THxT FHEIT
Short-term employee benefits RHEERA 2,326 435
Contributions to defined contribution TEREHFGRIRE N ET S50
retirement benefits scheme 35 41
2,361 476
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 EREAREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and risk
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends and raising of new
capital.
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

33

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities as at

the end of reporting period are as follows:

$RTITHE

() EMIEMSE
REBREHRNEHREELREHE
BEWREEERIIAT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FET
Financial assets: EWMEE
Amortised cost/Loans and receivables: R A BN R EE
Trade receivables B 5 IR SK 508,953 642,336
Financial assets included in other FFAEMEWHIE - Re
receivables, deposits and RERNFIEREE
prepayments 2,277 164
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 182,639 66,302
693,869 708,802
Financial liabilities S@MAasE
Amortised cost: BEEACAS -
Trade payables = ANE N 205,889 360,857
Financial liabilities included in other FTAEME IR - EETE A
payables, accruals and deposits KEWkezemas
received 22,922 17,237
Amount due to a Director B —RESHE = 8,247
Amounts due to related parties JETREE S A - 1,560
Bank borrowings RITEE 391,268 479,486
620,079 867,387

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are described below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

TREREEBZEREE
AEEEHEHZEMBERR - ™
SRE(EFEE%ARRMNEE
) EERRERBESER -
a0 {a] R B % B LR MY R R B T
X BEHREEERERZFRAR -
PAREIRIZ BB R B T A E &
BRI -

(b)
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

33 €®MIA(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is United States dollars (“USD"). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy with respect to its foreign exchange exposure.
However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposures and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in USD. For
presentation purpose, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the end of reporting period.

(b) SHEEMREEBZRBER (&)

(i

E¥ER

REB T ERARBEBH
W E R LN B SHER
& K BB M m RSN R
o BEULEBRNE® RHE
(M=) - REEBREFL
I E SME [ 2 B B N
HHERR- AN EEES
EEIMNERFR - WHNER
R Z B ERIMNERR

TRFANANEEREREH
RPTHEEREAETHEND
BREELEEMELHI
ERE - S25 B AR
SRIAETIR - AR
SHRRWERBE -

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables B S EIRERFR 488,703 616,103
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBNIR 169,048 57,968
Financial assets included in other STAEMEWTUE - e
receivables, deposits and MENRIE ©REE
prepayments = 164
Trade payables B O EMIER (188,019) (352,008)
Financial liabilities included in other st AR A FE( 0B - FERTE A
payables, accruals and deposits kElfzezemats
received (14,971) (8,351)
Bank borrowings RITHEE (364,757) (442,246)
Net exposure arising from recognised CHEREEN BEEE
assets and liabilities 2 Bk EE 90,004 (128,370
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange
fluctuation of the currency of USD against the currency
of Hong Kong dollar ("HKD"). The Directors consider that
the Group's exposure to USD does not give rise to
significant foreign currency risk on the ground that HKD
is pegged to USD. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis of
USD against the functional currency of the respective
group entity is disclosed.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises
primarily from its variable-rate bank deposits and bank
borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
the Group's exposure to interest rate risk on an ongoing
basis and will consider hedging interest rate risk should
the need arises.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates for the Group's variable-
rate bank deposits and bank borrowings at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of these assets and liabilities outstanding at the
end of reporting period were outstanding for the whole
period. A 100 basis points increase or decrease in interest
rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The analysis has been performed
on the same basis for 2017.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) higher/
lower in respect of the Group's variable rate bank
deposits and bank borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, there would decrease/increase the
Group's post-tax profit and equity in 2018 by
approximately HK$3,099,000 (2017: HK$3,946,000).

33 €@MIA(E)
(b)) £REMREEBENREE (&)

(i

(ii)

E¥ER(E)
INE B D AT
AEBEXTEEBRETLBT
(I 7T]) RS R B R B o
E=ZRR ERBTHEXT
ey AREmEEE 2 ZTRE
RS ERERINERE -
Hir - MEFREXTAES
BEBNEEB Z2HEED
i

FRmEk
REEAZZHEREMNEK
RREBEREEZERTHE
AERITREE -

7 S [ 3R B 5 A A ) ) R
K - A BEEEGR
BERASENXER I
1 7 B B8 R K [

LA
a0
ZN

o

FIRGBE B HT

A TNREE 20T IR R R &
HARAERZFBRITER
MARTTIEBATE R FIEE
MER - REESITRRR
RBERAREINZEEE
TEEsERERBMALS
Koo FIE T 100 EE
LA M EEIE BR8N ER
REFERBREER 1A
EREHFEAIBAIEEE)
Rl - RZE—+HENH
MR AR EERE -

RIREBR - WAEBEF =X
AENRTTERABRITEER
R R S T 100 EE2
T+ 100EEE) -
MEMSEHEFTE  KE
BER = \FNH%EEF
KRB D B A A4
30990008 L (=& — £ 4F :
3,946,000 78 7T ) °
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and bank deposits. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is the carrying amounts of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position without
taking account of any factoring that do not qualify for
derecognition in the consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables amounting to
HK$366,711,000 (2017: HK$407,426,000) has been
transferred to financial institutions under factoring
agreements.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group has a credit
policy in place and will perform credit evaluations on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Certain
trade receivable balances on open account terms are
covered by customers' letters of credit or are factored to
external financial institutions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
regularly to ensure that adequate allowance for
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade receivables.
In this regard, the management of the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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33 €®MIA(E)
(b)) £REMREEBENREE (&)

(iii)

EERE
AEEFERKREERAE
SEWER 3K - E B U 5K IB
KBRITEFER - R=ZT—\F
rZZE—+F+tZA=+—
B EHFHAREBTEME
M 7 35 7 55 B 3 ik B 75 8 2k
ZEaEERRARETE
MAEZRRNEFN B BEDER
TREE - KT RE@TE
BN IRE R R AR EE
RZEMRE - RZE—N
F+-_A=+—8B &£8A
366,711,0008 (= & — +
T 1 4074260008 TT) N E 5
FEWEER T RIBRIE R EE
BT DR -

IEZRKERME - A%
EEHEEENEERRL
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables based on lifetime expected credit losses,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the expected credit losses rate for trade
receivables is minimal, given there is no history of
significant defaults from customers and insignificant
impact from forward-looking estimates. The Group
assesses that there is no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 31
December 2018.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. As at 31 December 2017, trade receivable of
approximately HK$2,119,000 were determined to be
impaired.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the Group's
largest trade debtor accounted for 11% of its total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 18%). In
addition, the Group’s top five major customers
accounted for 34% of its total trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 52%).

33 €@MIA(E)
(b)) £REMREEBENREE (&)

(iii)

FERR (&)
AEBREE2HEHEES
B BEE S RRERNER
Bim WABREBRERE-
HRASENBEEERR
BBIAKRBIRELDE
MEBEEATEREEZE
BRI A B R B R
BrREHAEENTRZEP
HiFE—FEN -BE-F
—NFE+ZA=1+—HILF
- EREPALJEEAER
ik BRIEMERAEE
YAREKX - HEHREKIER
MEHREEERXBE - K
SEFER_ZE-NF+=
A=1t—BXEREZEY
BiEERE I RERERE
B -

EMERERTENBEIFH
EREBELR AR EY
RENFETHE - AR
Yo S B S 8O B R A IR
S B ORIR R B 5 B $ R
WK TR B A F B R B AR
MERZHENESR -

FZE—N\F—H—H7"
EERREEEBERBEER
B FERRERSE - B
—E—+tF+_A=+—
B &S EKARE%72,119,000
BILEETARIE -

RZE-NF+ZA=+—
H AEBSKREHEBA
HEE D ERRRETEN%
ZTE—+F 18%)  WAE
BEEERRSES - LN RN
—2—NEF+-_A=+—
H AEBRREZERFG
BB S EBER AR 34% (=
T 1 50%)
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risks of financial assets included in other
receivables are low as the Group has not had any
significant loss arising from non-performance by the
counterparties in the past and management does not
expect so in the future. The management assessed that
the expected credit losses for other receivable is not
significant.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because such
amounts are placed with various banks with good credit
ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
setoutin note 17.

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by the
management of the Group. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

During the reporting period, the Group financed its
working capital requirements principally by funds
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33 €RIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)y SRIEAMREEEEREEK (E)
(Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REBESES(E)
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRFMRERRBERR
maturities at the end of reporting period for its financial PRABGEZENINEOMN -
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on TERDBRESREE 2R
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on RIBERE WAREEEA
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to NENEFEHAEER
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash o XNBEMERETER
flows. DME °
Repayable
on demand Total
or within More than undiscounted Carrying
1year 1year cash flows amount
ARERY AERRS
R—EREE BB—F MEAE FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NF+ZA=+-H
Trade payables 2 SRR 205,889 - 205,889 205,889
Financial liabilities included in STAEMERTE BB
other payables, accruals and LENREZEBAE
deposits received 22,922 - 22,922 22,922
Bank borrowings (note 1) RITEE (1) 391,268 = 391,268 391,268

620,079 - 620,079 620,079
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

33 €®MIA(E)
(b)) £REMREEBENREE (&)

(ivi RBESREMRE(H)

Repayable
on demand Total
or within Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1 year cash flows amount
EIREXY RERAS
R—EREER BR—F mELE FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET FAT THET
As at 31 December 2017 RZE-t&+=A=1-H
Trade payables B HREMNER 360,857 - 360,857 360,857
Financial liabilities included in STAEMERTE BB
other payables, accruals and LENREZERAR
deposit received 17237 - 17237 17237
Amount due to a Director EN—ZEERE 8247 - 8247 8247
Amount due to related parties [ENBER TR 1560 - 1560 1560
Bank borrowings (note 1) RITEE (1) 479486 - 479486 479486
867,387 - 867,387 867,387
Guarantees issued: BEELER:
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERE )
(note 2) 30,070 - 30,070 30,070
Note 1: FMizE -

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the "Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the

above maturity analysis. As at 31
undiscounted principal amount

December 2018, the aggregate
of these borrowings amounted

to HK$185,315,000 (2017: HK$254,486,000). Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the Directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary

rights to demand immediate re
that such bank loans will be r
scheduled repayment dates set

payment. The Directors believe
epaid in accordance with the
out in the loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33 €RIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)y SRIEAMREEEEREEK (E)

(Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REESER(E)
Note 1: (Continued) MizET - ()
In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain a BIBEMBREZRERERRAOER
repayment on demand clause, the maturity profile of these B ZFEERNMEBARN T
loans as at the end of reporting period, based on the BB R (R & K RBEIRA R R AR
contractual undiscounted payment according to the scheduled BREEERBE AT :

repayment dates, is as follows:

Within 1 year 1105 years Over 5 years Total
—FR —ZRF HBARF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn T T T
As at 31 December 2018 WZE-\F+-A=+—H 168,103 10,403 10,098 188,604
As at 31 December 2017 R=ZFT—+F+=-A=+—H 234,844 11,219 12,142 258,205
Note 2: MiEE2
The amounts included above for guarantees issued at 31 FRAER =T —+tF+=A
December 2017 were the maximum amounts the Group could =T HAEEROSEDASE
have to pay if that amount is claimed by the bank. The Group BEAXNN&S®E(MIRTTH
did not consider it probable that a claim would be made RZERE) - AEBERBTKRA
against the Group under the guarantees. These guarantees BETL 2 F R M AN B 4R I R
have been released during the year ended 31 December 2018. R ZFEERENBEE_Z-N

FrA=+—RLFEHER -

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) eRIAAFHE
The management of the Group considers that the carrying AEBEBEERR RSB
amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities RENIENAEECHEERS
as reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position MEEMNEEERESEATEME

+t

approximate their respective fair values. a e




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had executed the following
guarantees in respect of banking facilities granted to related
companies in which Mr. Lee has beneficial interests.

— guarantee limited to HK$86,000,000 plus default interest and
other costs and expenses among the Group and related
companies; and

— guarantee with unlimited amount between the Group and a
related company

Such banking facilities utilised by the related companies as at 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$30,070,000. The Directors did not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the aforesaid guarantees. These guarantees have been
released during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR aR M

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 35 MERESRERMTE

FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (a) BETHFELEENYE
activities
Amounts
due to
related Bank
parties borrowings Total
PE1
BAE 7 IR RITEE et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL FAT
Balance at 1 January 2017 N-E—+F—-A—HHNES 4929 262434 267,363
Changes from financing activities: BETHNEE :
New bank instalment loans raised MEENRTHIBER - 7923 7923
Repayment of bank instalment loans  {B&RTHHERK - (5,838) (5,838)
Net increase in factoring loans REBETIEINFE - 78,009 78,009
Net increase in other bank borrowings — E b R1TEE & IELE - 136,810 136,810
Interests on bank borrowings paid BRRITEEFS - (11,368) (11,368)
Advance from related parties BT 1,560 - 1,560
Total changes from financing activities Gl & & B)H) & 88 %E 1,560 205,536 207,096
Other changes: A&
Exchange adjustments (R (249) - (249)
Finance costs charged to Profitor loss MBI IR E AR
(note 8) (FfzEs) - 11,368 11,368
Amount capitalised for share allotment &t — &1 F B A 7] 69 I {7 B 3
of a subsidiary BERHEH (4,680) - (4,680)
Total other changes Hib 2 Ehdss (4,929) 11,368 6,439
Bank overdrafts included BEARNRITEY - 148 148
Balance at 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-A=1+—8
1 January 2018 kZF—-N\E—H—H
A ER 1,560 479,486 481,046
Changes from financing activities: BE LB E
New bank instalment loans raised FEENBITOHER - 12,800 12,800
Repayment of bank instalment loans  {Ei&RTHHER - (14,381) (14,381)
Net decrease in factoring loans REBETR A FHE - (19,047) (19,047)
Net decrease in other bank borrowings  Eh$R17EE R F58 - (67,442) (67,442)
Interests on bank borrowings paid ERNRITEENE - (18,293) (18,293)
Repayment to related parties EE T ER (1,560) = (1,560)
Total changes from financing activities g & E B8 & Eh 4858 (1,560) (106,363) (107,923)
Other changes: HmEeg)
Finance costs charged to Profitor loss R B2 0% 8RN E BN
(note 8) (FfzE8) - 18,293 18,293
Total other changes Hith B Epazn - 18,293 18,293
Bank overdrafts excluded ERINOIRITE X - (148) (148)
Balance at 31 December 2018 =2 N\ = B ==
B - 391,268 391,268

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #“%#% 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 35 FERESREBRME(E)

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Major non-cash transaction b) FEIBEXS
For year ended 31 December 2017, amount of US$600,000 BE—ET—+E+—-A=+—AIF
(equivalent to HK$4,680,000) due to Mr. Pai was capitalised for £ - 3 Data Star B BB T &
share allotment of Data Star. AL FE < 3 46 A B9 £ %8 75 600,000

ETT (FEE R 4,680,000/ 7T ) °

36 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36 75 /3 =] B IS 4R 30 5 J% (55
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8
2018 2017
A .
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RSB RARIMIEE 4,012 -
Total non-current assets . FRPEERE 4,012 -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGB 130,307 -
Prepayments SEANE € 255 -
Bank balances RITEERR 300 48
Total current assets . hpEEE® 2 130862 = 48
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables, accruals HAMERFIE - BB 4,539 288
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGIEeE 2,953 454
Total current liabilities . n@AEes 7492 742
Net current assets/(liabilities) - hBEE/(RE)F®E 123370 (694)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/(BE)FE 127,382 (694)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRFHE
Share capital A% A 10,000 -
Reserves His 117,382 (694)
Total equity/(Deficiency in assets) wmEn(BEEXR) 127,382 (694)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

36 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36 AR R R #iE (&)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Movement in the Company’s issued capital and reserve AABHEBITRARFEEES

(Accumulated

losses)/

Share Share Retained
capital Premium earnings Total

(RitEE)/
(& IR R 1E R EF st
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT TEL FET FAT
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—-A—H - - (307) (307)
Loss for the year FERNER - - (387) (387)
At 31 December 2017 R_E—tF+-A=+—H - - (694) (694)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F—A—H - - (694) (694)
Profit for the year F R A - - 14,132 14,132
Issue of new shares BIHES 2,500 122,500 - 125,000
Share issue expenses MR ETRY - (11,056) - (11,056)

Capitalisation issue B BT 7,500 (7,500) = =

At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+-A=+—H 10,000 103,944 13,438 127,382




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling ~ RiBE R EAF B EEN A EBEEIAREE

Ny

interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. BEIEERESRHBESHTINT -

RESULTS RE

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=L —T—+F T —RF —T-RF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT FAT FAET FHBT

Revenue Wz 3,717,611 2,840,308 1,702,322 1,121,206 780,387
Profit before tax B B4 B i ) 42,380 58,009 53,817 29314 14,283
Tax g (9,098) (12,642) (8,982) (4,861) (2,985)
Profit for the year F A% A 33,282 45,367 44,835 24453 11,298
Attributable to: AT AT FE -
— Owners of the Company — AR GHHA A 22,614 34,986 39,741 24,453 11,298
— Non-controlling interests — 3E1 AR #E 25 10,668 10,381 5,094 - -
33,282 45,367 44,835 24,453 11,298

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BERFERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=Sl T tF T % ZThF —T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T FABT FAET T

Total assets BERE 962,408 1,081,440 600,026 311,256 216,350
Total liabilities BERRE (632,676) (881,106) (447,859) (203,945) (128,418)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥ R #E2E (23,866) (15,382) (5,094) — —

Equity attributable to the ViN/NETEZ Y =N
owners of the Company FEfh R 305,866 184,952 147,073 107,311 87,932
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